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PART |

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act Safe Harba Statement

Certain statements included herein and in othesrte@and public filings made by RCM Technologies,. I(“RCM” or the “Company”) are
forward-looking within the meaning of the Privatec8rities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Theseviard-looking statements include,
without limitation, statements regarding the admptdy businesses of new technology solutions; seehy businesses of outsourced soluti
such as those offered by the Company, in conneatiinsuch adoption; the Company’s strategic anglrimss initiatives and growth
strategies; and the outcome of litigation (at kbthtrial and appellate levels) involving the CompaReaders are cautioned that such
forward-looking statements, as well as others nipdine Company, which may be identified by wordshsas “may,” “will,” “expect,”
“anticipate,” “continue,” “estimate,” “project,” titend,” “believe,” and similar expressions, areygmedictions and are subject to risks and
uncertainties that could cause the Company’s actsalts and financial position to differ mateyalom such statements. Such risks and
uncertainties include, without limitation: (i) umployment and general economic conditions affedfiregprovision of engineering and
information technology services and solutions d@dlacement of temporary staffing personneltlig Company’s ability to continue to
attract, train and retain personnel qualified teetribe requirements of its clients; (iii) the Compa ability to identify appropriate acquisition
candidates, complete such acquisitions and suedsistegrate acquired businesses; (iv) unceriintegarding amounts of deferred
consideration and earnout payments to become payatidbrmer shareholders of acquired businessgshévadverse effect a potential
decrease in the trading price of the Company’s comstock would have upon the Company’s abilitydquare businesses through the
issuance of its securities; (vi) the Company’sigbib obtain financing on satisfactory terms; Jthe reliance of the Company upon the
continued service of its executive officers; (vilie Company’s ability to remain competitive in tharkets that it serves; (ix) the Company’s
ability to maintain its unemployment insurance pitgms and workers compensation premiums; (x) tHeafslaims being made against the
Company associated with providing temporary stgffiarvices; (xi) the Company’s ability to managg#icant amounts of information and
periodically expand and upgrade its informationgessing capabilities; (xii) the Company’s abilibyremain in compliance with federal and
state wage and hour laws and regulations; (xiiQeutainties in predictions as to the future needife Company’s services; (ix) uncertainties
relating to the allocation of costs and expensezsatdh of the Company’s operating segments; (xvEdsés of conducting and the outcome of
litigation involving the Company, and the applidéapiof insurance coverage with respect to any diigfation; (xvi) the results of, and costs
relating to, interactions with shareholders of @@mpany who may pursue specific initiatives witbpect to the Company’s governance and
strategic direction; and (xvii) other economic, qmatitive and governmental factors affecting the @any’s operations, markets, products
services. Readers are cautioned not to place uetiaace on these forward-looking statements, Wwijgeak only as of the date

made. Except as required by law, the Company takies no obligation to publicly release the resofitany revision of these forward-
looking statements to reflect these trends or oistances after the date they are made or to reéfleaciccurrence of unanticipated events.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

RCM Technologies, Inc. is a premier provider ofihass and technology solutions designed to enhamdenaximize the operational
performance of its customers through the adaptatimhdeployment of advanced engineering and infdom&echnology services. RCM is
also a provider of specialty healthcare servicasafor health care institutions and educationalifees. RCM has been an innovative leader
in the design, development, and delivery of theseises to commercial and government sectors fore#dds. Over the years, the Company
has developed and assembled an attractive, disadsextensive portfolio of capabilities, servickedhgs and delivery options, established a
proven record of performance and credibility, andttan efficient pricing structure. This combiitat offers clients a compelling value
proposition with the potential to substantially @lecate the successful attainment of their busiobgetives

RCM consists of three operating segments: Engingehformation Technology and Specialty HealtheC&ervices. RCM'’s Engineering
segment provides engineering and design, engirgearialysis, technical writing and technical suppertices, Engineer, Procure and
Construction Management (“EPC") as well as Demaidé $1anagement/Energy Conservation Services. Cdmapany’s Information
Technology, or IT, segment provides enterpriser®ss solutions, application services, infrastrictniutions, competitive advantage &
productivity solutions, life sciences solutions arker selected vertical market specific offeringfile Company’s Specialty Health Care
Services segment provides the staffing of health peofessionals, primarily therapists, nurseseard givers.

The Company services some of the largest natiorhlrgernational companies in North America as aslh lengthy roster of Fortune 1000
and mid-sized businesses in such industries asspaoe/Defense, Energy, Financial Services, Lifer®eas, Manufacturing & Distribution,
the Public Sector and Technology. RCM believesférs a range of solutions that fosters long-telient relationships, affords cross-selling
opportunities, and minimizes the Company’s depeoe@mn any single technology or industry sector.MR&lls and delivers its services
through a network of 26 offices in selected regittmsughout North America.

The Company is a Nevada corporation organized "i19he address of its principal executive offee@500 McClellan Avenue, Suite 350,
Pennsauken, NJ 08109-4613.

During the fiscal year ended December 28, 2013;cqipately 50.8% of RCM'’s total revenues were dedifrom Engineering services,
32.4% from IT services, and the remaining 16.8%mfi@pecialty Health Care services.

Demand for the Comparg/'services can be significantly impacted by chamgése general level of economic activity, partarly technology
spending. During periods of reduced economic #gtisuch as the environment in the United Statekthe world in general that followed
economic dislocations that commenced in mid-200& Gompany may also be subject to increased prfmiegsure in its markets due to
reduced spending by clients and potential cliehte@Company. Extended periods of weakness irtio@omy can have a material adverse
impact on the Company’s business and results aftipas. Accordingly, the Company’s operationsevadversely impacted by the
economic downturn that began in mid-2007, and wihiéeCompany believes the downturn and its impadhe Company have been
somewhat alleviated, similar circumstances coukkan the future.

Industry Overview

Businesses today face intense competition, thdertggd of constant technological change and theinggeeed for business process
optimization. To address these issues and to ctampere effectively, companies are continually eatihg the need for implementing
innovative solutions to upgrade their systems, iappbns and processes. As a result, the abifignoorganization to integrate and align
advanced technologies with new business objecisvestical.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Industry Overview (Continued)

Although most companies recognize the importanagptimizing their systems, applications and proesds compete in today’s challenging
environment, the process of designing, developityimmplementing business and technology solutisfmetoming increasingly

complex. The Company believes that many businessefocused on return on investment analysisioripzing their initiatives. The
Company believes that as a consequence, over shéepayears, companies have elected to deferfineder cancel investments in new
systems, software, and solutions and have focusedaking extended and more effective use of prevteahnological investments.

On the other hand, the current economic environreatlenges many companies to integrate and mas@gputing environments consisting
of multiple computing platforms, operating systenfstabases and networking protocols and off-thé-sb&ware applications to support
business objectives. Companies also need to keapwith new technology developments, which ofagidly render existing equipment and
internal skills obsolete. At the same time, exaéetonomic factors have caused many organizatifteus on core competencies and trim
workforces in the IT management area. Accordingilgse organizations often lack the quantity, qualnd variety of IT skills necessary to
design and support IT solutions. IT managers haeged with supporting increasingly complex systamd applications of significant
strategic value, while working under budgetary spenel and expertise constraints within their owgaaizations.

The Company’s Engineering group continues to faruareas of growth within the energy, aerospacecantnercial building industries. In
recent years, many businesses have been advergedgted by oil prices and other energy-relatedscastl developments, and for that and
various other reasons, there has been growingisentiaround the world for the development of ali&ue sources of energy, including a
renewed interest in nuclear power.

The Company believes its target market for IT saryiis among middle-market companies, which tylyidatk the time and technical
resources to satisfy all of their IT needs intdgnallhese companies commonly require sophisticaegerienced IT assistance to achieve
their business objectives and often rely on IT iserproviders to help implement and manage theitesys. However, many middle-market
companies rely on multiple providers for their I&edls. Generally, the Company believes that thiesee on multiple providers results from
the fact that larger IT service providers do nog¢d these companies, while smaller IT service iplerg, which do target these companies,
lack sufficient breadth of services or industry Wedge to satisfy all of these companies' needse Gompany believes this reliance on
multiple service providers creates multiple relasioips that are more difficult and less cost-effecto manage than a single relationship and
can adversely influence the quality and compatibdf IT solutions. RCM is structured to providédaie-market companies a single source
for their IT needs.

In the healthcare services industry, a shortagaidfes and other medical personnel in the UnitateShas led to increases in business
activity for health care service companies, inalgdihe Company’s Specialty Healthcare Group. Dygart to an aging population and
improved medical technology, the demand for setebtalth care professionals is expected to contiwee the next several years.

Business Strategy

RCM is dedicated to providing solutions to meetlisnts’ business needs by delivering engineeaimg information technology

services. The Company’s objective is to be a reizaegl leader of specialized professional consubienyices and solutions in major markets
throughout North America. The Company adapts dperatrategies to achieve this objective. Théofeing is a discussion of the key
elements of its growth and operating strategies:




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Growth Strategy

Promote Full Life Cycle Solution Capability

The Company promotes a full life cycle solution aifity to its customers. The goal of the fulklifycle solution strategy is to fully addre:
client’s project implementation cycle at each stage afeteelopment and deployment. This entails the Gompvorking with its clients fror
the initial conceptualization of a project throutfhdesign and project execution, and extending émgoing management and support of the
delivered product. RCM's strategy is to build j@cis and solutions offerings selectively, utilizitgjextensive resource base.

The Company believes that the effective executidhie strategy will generate improved margins tneixisting resources. The completiol
this service-offering continuum is intended to affthe Company the opportunity to strengthen largatclient relationships that will further
contribute to a more predictable revenue stream.

In addition to a full life cycle solution offeringhe Company continues to focus on transitionirig igher value oriented services in an effort
to increase its margins on its various servicesliaed generate revenue that is more sustainalble.Coémpany believes this transition is
accomplished by pursuing additional vertical masgecific solutions in conjunction or combinatioitwongerterm based solutions, throt
expansion of its client relationships and by purgwstrategic alliances and partnerships.

Achieve Internal Growth

The Company continues to promote its internal ghosttategies which we designed to better serv€tmepany’s customers, generate higher
revenue and achieve greater operating efficiendiesiness units are collaborating on penetratirgservicing accounts as sales teams are
increasing their activity levels. This enablegits to be supported by specialists in their apéaged while RCM productivity increases.

RCM provides an orientation program in which satemagers and professionals receive relevant inflsmabout Company operations.

RCM has adopted an industry-centric approach &ssahd marketing. This initiative contemplate¢ dhiants within the same industry
sectors tend to have common business challengéseréfore allows the Company to present and debwnhanced value to those clients ir
vertical markets in which RCM has assembled thatgst work experience. RCM'’s consultants contilougctjuire project experience that
offers differentiated awareness of the businesBertges that clients in that industry are facifidnis alignment also facilitates and creates
additional cross-selling opportunities. The Comphelieves this strategy will lead to greater actqenetration and enhanced client
relationships.

Operational strategies contributing to RCM'’s in@rproductivity include the delineation of certaiew solutions practice areas in markets
where its clients had historically known the Comypan a contract service provider. The formatiotheke practice areas should facilitate the
flow of project opportunities and the delivery abject-based solutions.

Pursue Selective Strategic Acquisitions

The industry in which the Company operates consirtaébe highly fragmented, and the Company plam®mdinue to selectively assess
opportunities to make strategic acquisitions as sygportunities are presented to the Company. Tdmpany's acquisition strategy is
designed to broaden the scope of services anditatlmompetencies and grow its full life cycle g@ua capabilities. In considering
acquisition opportunities, the Company focusesagipelly on companies with (i) technologies or markegments RCM has targeted for
strategic value enhancement, (i) margins thataoeetive to existing margins, (iii) experiencednagement personnel, (iv) substantial
growth prospects and (v) sellers who desire to fltnCompany’s management team. To retain andd®ancentives for management of its
acquired companies, the Company has generallytgtagta significant portion of the acquisition jgria the form of multi-tiered
consideration based on growth of operating profitstof the acquired company over a two to fouaygeriod.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Operating Strategy

Develop and Maintain Strong Customer Relationships

The Company seeks to develop and maintain strdegaictive customer relationships by anticipatind otusing on its customers’

needs. The Company emphasizes a relationshiptedepproach to business, rather than the trangastiassignmentfriented approach th
the Company believes is used by many of its cortgrsti This industry-centric strategy is desigredltow RCM to expand further its
relationships with clients in RCM'’s targeted sestor

To develop close customer relationships, the Coyipgractice managers and/or sales people regutaelst with both existing and
prospective clients to identify areas of need aglg Hesign solutions and identify the resourcesledéo execute their strategies. The
Company’s managers also maintain close communitatigth their customers during each project andmongoing basis after its
completion. The Company believes that this refeiop-oriented approach can result in greater oustsatisfaction. Additionally, the
Company believes that by collaborating with itstoosers in designing business solutions, it can ggaeaew opportunities to cross-sell
additional services that the Company has to offdre Company focuses on providing customers witlified individuals or teams of expe
compatible with the business needs of its customedsmakes a concerted effort to follow the progiassuch relationships to ensure their
continued success.

Attract and Retain Highly Qualified Consultants drethnical Resources

The Company believes it has been successful iactittg and retaining highly qualified consultantsl @ontractors by (i) providing
stimulating and challenging work assignments dfifiering competitive wages, (iii) effectively commiaating with its candidates, (iv)
providing selective training to maintain and upgrattills and (v) aligning the needs of its custasmeith appropriately skilled personnel. 1
Company believes it has been successful in retithiese personnel due in part to its use of pactianagers who are dedicated to
maintaining contact with, and monitoring the satision levels of, the Company’s consultants andrestors while they are on assignment.

Centralize Administrative Functions

The Company continues to improve its operatiorfatieficies by integrating general and administefiunctions at the corporate or regional
level, and reducing or eliminating redundant fuoiesi formerly performed at smaller branch offic&his enables the Company to realize
savings and synergies and to control and mongavperations efficiently, as well as to quicklyeigtate new acquisitions. It also allows local
branches to focus more on growing their local ofpana.

To accomplish this, the Company’s financial repaytand accounting systems are centralized in thepgaay’s operational headquarters in
Parsippany, NJ. The systems have been configarpdrform all back office functions, including pallr project management, project cost
accounting, billing, human resource administraod financial reporting and consolidation. The @any anticipates a comprehensive
review of its financial reporting and accountingt®m platform in the fiscal year ending Januar@®,5. The Company may make chang¢
its financial reporting and accounting system, magdrom a complete upgrade or switch to anothatfpim to enhancements to its current
system. The Company estimates the costs may femmgeb0.5 million to $2.0 million.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Engineering

The Company’s Engineering segment consists oftfosiness units — Engineering Services and Projeotser Systems Services USA and
Power Systems Services Canada and Facilities DasigiConstruction. The Engineering Services angfts unit includes Aerospace,
Manufacturing and Industrial Engineering divisiorighe Power Systems units focus primarily on thelear power, fossil fuel, transmission
and distribution and electric utility industries.

RCM provides a full range of Engineering servigeduding Engineering & Design, Engineering Analy&isgineer-Procure-Construct,
Configuration Management, Hardware/Software Vailata®& Verification, Quality Assurance, Technical Milig & Publications,

Manufacturing Process Planning & Improvement, Rdlitg Centered Maintenance (RCM), Component & Eumént Testing and Risk
Management Engineering. Engineering services andqed at the site of the client or, less freqiyerat the Company’s own facilities.

The Company believes that the deregulation of thiées industry and the aging of nuclear poweargb offer the Company an opportunity to
capture a greater share of professional servicgpraject management requirements of the utilitidsistry both in engineering services and
through cross-selling of its information technolaggrvices. Heightened competition, deregulatichrapid technological advances are
forcing the utilities industry to make fundamernthhnges in its business process. These pressawresbmpelled the utilities industry to
focus on internal operations and maintenance dievand to increasingly outsource their designemmgineering modification

requirements. Additionally, the Company believes tompetitive performance demands from dereguiaghould increase the importance
information technology to this industry. The Compéelieves that its expertise and strong relatigpsswith certain customers within the
utilities industry position the Company to be adieg provider of professional services to the tigidi industry.

RCM provides a wide array of turnkey energy managy@rservices offering clients/customers opportanifor demand side management
from concept to turnover. Deploying advanced nieteinfrastructure (AMI) systems is the catalystl dom@nchmarking tool necessary for
today’s cost effective, energy efficient and susthle programs.

The Company provides its engineering services tiltanumber of delivery methods. These includeaged tasks and resources, complete
project services, outsourcing, both on and off;gited a full complement of resourcing alternatives.

As of December 28, 2013, the Company assigned aippately 730 engineering and technical employeescamsultants to its customers.
Information Technology

The Company’s IT segment is an integrated groupusfness units providing staff supplementationises/and project solutions with
physical locations in the U.S., Canada and Pueido Brimarily supporting Financial, Technical, Mdacturing and Distribution
applications. Areas of specialization in projemiugons include:

« Enterprise Infrastructure Management

« Enterprise Integration

« Enterprise Supply Chain

« Enterprise Project Management

« Enterprise HR

« Life Sciences

« Assessment and Remediation of Federally RegulafedScience Equipment and Processes




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Information Technology (Continued)

The RCM Enterprise Business Solutions Group’s boisghess mission is to continue its strategic fnsation designed to focus the
Company on developing proprietary customized sohstiand methodologies by bundling software, systéwots and services into integrated
business and technology solutions. Invoices ojept® whereby the Company sold its own proprietsafyjware were not material for the
fiscal year ended December 28, 2013.

RCM'’s sector knowledge coupled with technical andibess process experience enable the Compangum@rstrategic planning, project
execution and management and support servicesghooti the entire project life cycle. RCM has sestally completed multimillion-dollar
projects in a variety of industry verticals usiimge-tested methodologies that manage strict budgetslines and quality metrics.

Among those IT services provided by RCM to itsrdigeare:

« Enterprise Business Solutions

« Application Services

« Infrastructure Solutions

« Competitive Advantage & Productivity Solutions
« Life Sciences Solutions

The Company believes that its ability to deliveloimation technology solutions across a wide rasfgechnical platforms provides an
important competitive advantage. RCM ensuresiti@bnsultants have the expertise and skills retéal&eep pace with rapidly evolving
information technologies. The Company'’s strategipimaintain expertise and acquire knowledge iltiphe technologies so it can offer its
clients non-biased technology solutions best suddteir business needs.

The Company provides its IT services through a remalb flexible delivery methods. These include agement consulting engagements,
project management of client efforts, project impémtation of client initiatives, outsourcing, bath and off site, and a full complement of
resourcing alternatives.

As of December 28, 2013, the Company assigned ajppately 450 information technology employees aodstiltants to its customers.
Specialty Health Care

The Company’s Specialty Health Care Group spee@alia long-term and shotérm staffing as well as executive search and piace for the
following fields: rehabilitation (physical therafss occupational therapists and speech languagelpatsts), nursing, managed care, allied
health care, health care management, medical aftipport and non-medical caregivers or companidin& specialty health care group
provides services to hospitals, long-term cardifeas, schools, sports medicine facilities andraté practices. Services include in-patient,
outpatient, sub-acute and acute care, multilingpakch pathology, rehabilitation, and geriatricligteic, and adult day care. Typical
engagements either range from three to six monthseoon a day-to-day shift basis.

As of December 28, 2013, the Company assigned ajppately 390 specialty health care services persbinits customers.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Branch Offices

The Company’s organization consists of 26 branéleexf located in the United States, Canada and®&éco. The locations and services of

each of the branch offices are set forth in théetakblow.

NUMBER OF SERVICES
LOCATION OFFICES PROVIDED(1)
USA
California 2 HC
Connecticu 1 E
Florida 1 HC
Hawaii 1 HC
Maryland 1 IT
Massachusett 1 IT
Michigan 3 IT, E
Minnesota 1 IT
New Jerse! 3 IT,E
New Mexico 1 HC
New York 3 IT, E, HC
Oregon 1 IT
Pennsylvanic 1 HC
Rhode Islanc 1 E
Wisconsin 1 E
22
CANADA 3 IT, E
PUERTO RICC 1 IT

(1) Services provided are abbreviated as follows:
E - Engineering
IT - Information Technology
HC - Specialty Health Care

Branch offices are primarily located in markets tite Company believes have strong growth prosgectsngineering and IT services. The
Company’s branches are operated in a decentrakrdcbpreneurial manner with most branch officesrating as independent profit

centers. The Comparg/branch managers are given significant autonontiyeirdaily operations of their respective offices avith respect t
such offices, are responsible for overall guidaamg supervision, budgeting and forecasting, saldsyaarketing strategies, pricing, hiring ¢
training. Branch managers are paid on a perforexmased compensation system designed to motivamanagers to maximize growth and
profitability.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Branch Offices (Continued)

The Company is domiciled in the United States amdegments operate in the United States, CanatBuwarto Rico. Revenues for the fiscal
year ended December 28, 2013 and total assetsdgyagehic area as of December 28, 2013 are as ®l{$vwn thousands

Total
Revenue:! Assets
United State: $130,58! $62,19¢
Canads 34,98¢ 22,99:¢
Puerto Ricc 5,20( 1,332
$170,77! $86,52:

The Company believes that substantial portions@thiuying decisions made by users of the Compa®y\dces are made on a local or
regional basis and that the Company’s branch affinest often compete with local and regional preksd Since the Company’s branch
managers are in the best position to understanditival markets and customers often prefer localjuers, the Company believes that a
decentralized operating environment enhances apgna¢rformance and contributes to employee antbmes satisfaction.

From its headquarters locations in New JerseyCthrapany provides its branch offices with centraliaeministrative, marketing, finance,
MIS, human resources and legal support. Centdlziministrative functions minimize the administratburdens on branch office managers
and allow them to spend more time focusing on sahelsmarketing and practice development activities.

The Company’s principal sales offices typically bane general manager, one sales manager, thseesales people, several technical
delivery or practice managers and several recalitéhe general managers report to regional viesigents who are responsible for ensuring
that performance goals are achieved. The Compaegisnal vice presidents meet frequently to dis¢best practices” and ways to increase
the Company’s cross selling of its professionabises. The Company’s practice managers meet pealgto strategize, maintain

continuity, and identify developmental needs aratstselling opportunities.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing efforts are conducted at tted bnd national level through the Companyetwork of branch offices. Sales activities
productivity are tracked and rankings establishati@ublished. Sales between business units igné&ged and financially encouraged. The
Company emphasizes logrm personal relationships with customers thatlakeloped through regular assessment of custagairement
and proactive monitoring of service performancée Tompany’s sales personnel make regular viségigiing and prospective

customers. New customers are obtained throughessdiles programs and referrals. The Company emgesi its employees to participate in
national and regional trade associations, locaintieas of commerce and other civic associationee Gbmpany seeks to develop strategic
partnering relationships with its customers by mimg comprehensive solutions for all aspects ofistomer’s engineering, information
technology and other professional services ne&tie. Company concentrates on providing carefullgesed professionals with the
appropriate skills in a timely manner and at coritigetprices. The Company regularly monitors thelgy of the services provided by its
personnel and obtains feedback from its custonwets their satisfaction with the services provided.

The Company has elevated the importance of wonkitiy and developing its partner alliances with teadogy firms. Partner programs are
place with firms RCM has identified as strategig@hportant to the completeness of the servicerioifieof the Company. Relations have
been established with firms such as ADP, IBM, Meyciicrosoft, Oracle and QAD, among others. Thetiper programs may be managed
either at a national level from RCM'’s corporateads or at a regional level from its branch offices
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Sales and Marketing (Continued)

The Company’s larger recognizable customers incBMeAAR Corporation, ADP, Aramark, Aurora Flighti®nces Corporation, Bimbo
Bakeries, USA, Bruce Power Limited Partnership (& Power”), Bruckner Supply Company, Con Edisavabta, Entergy, Exelon
Nuclear, FlightSafety International, IBM, Johnsardaohnson, Lilly del Caribe, Microsoft, New YorlityfCDepartment of Education, Ne
York Power Authority, Ontario Power Generation,zefi Pragmatics, PSE&G, United Technologies CotimraU.S. Department of the
Treasury, Warner Chilcott and Zimmer Holdings, Ifide Company serves Fortune 1000 companies ang migidle market clients. The
Company’s relationships with these customers gieajly formed at the customers’ local or regioleadel and from time to time, when
appropriate, at the corporate level for nationabaaits.

During the fiscal year ended December 28, 2013a@mPower Generation (the Company primarily s&asiOntario Power Generation as a
subcontractor through Black and McDonald Limitedy@unted for 18.6% of the Company’s revenues aritedTechnologies Corporation
accounted for 12.6% of the Company’s revenues. tNera@ustomer accounted for 10% or more of the Gopjs revenues in that

period. The Company'’s five, ten and twenty largestomers accounted for approximately 45.2%, 5@ab#65.6%, respectively, of the
Company’s revenues for the fiscal year ended Deee@®, 2013.

Recruiting and Training

The Company devotes a significant amount of tingr@sources, primarily at the branch level, to fimgg training and retaining its
professional personnel. Full-time recruiters edilthe Company’s proprietary databases of availadrigsonnel, which are cross-indexed by
competency and skill to match potential candidatiéis the specific project requirements of the casto. The qualified personnel in the
databases are identified through numerous charinelsding networking, referrals, trade shows, fairs, schools, newspaper and trade
journal advertising, Internet recruiting servicesl dhe Compar’s website.

The Company believes that a significant elemetih@fCompany’s success in retaining qualified caastd and contract personnel is the
Company’s use of consultant relationship manageug@chnical practice managers. Consultant relskipp managers are qualified Company
personnel dedicated to maintaining on-site comntéttt, and monitoring the satisfaction levels og Bompany’s consultants and contract
personnel while they are on assignment. Practmeagers are consulting managers responsible faethaical development and career
development of the Company’s technical personngdinvithe defined practice areas. The Company gesvtechnical training and skills
development through vendor-sponsored courses, dempased training tools and on the job mentorirgams.

Information Systems

RCM has continued to engage in strategic initigiteeimprove upon its ability to secure data, deliservices and improve on its
communication infrastructure.

RCM has partnered with vendors like AT&T, Microsd@isco, SAP, ADP and DELL to deploy their busingskitions internally. All
perimeter devices have been standardized on Catlwiare; internal devices (servers, desktops, peptorinters, etc.) are DELL based; with
AT&T communication lines throughout the enterpriailitating centralized management and suppothefnetwork.

RCM has upgraded its perimeter network and WAN iggcture throughout the U.S. and Canada, to a eemmntralized model on Private
Network Transport (PNT /AVPN) AT&T circuits, utilimg Multiple Packet Label Switching (MPLS) transpprotocol. The hub datacenter

its operational headquarters has been outfitteldl reifundant fiber circuits from AT&T and Optimunghitpath utilizing Border gateway
Protocol (BGP) for automatic failover. Redundargwialls, routers and switching architecture prategainst hardware failure. Access to the
network is only allowed via SSL or IPSec 3DES pcols.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Information Systems (Continued)

The move to service oriented architecture facdidathe implementation of the Cisco Voice over (W) solution which is currently
deployed throughout RCM's offices. This enterpsséution, based on Cisco Call Manager, Unity voiagnMobility Manager, Meeting
Place, Fax Server and Video Presence has effectivified all RCM offices in the U.S. and Canad&enefits include four digit extension
calls between RCM offices, email and voicemail igaifion, soft and mobile phone integration, vided aveb conferencing, central and email
enabled faxing.

RCM'’s messaging architecture is currently basetherMicrosoft Exchange 2007 and Cisco Unity platforhe current mail system is
comprised of redundant mail routing servers andtehed mailbox servers attached to a Storage Aetadik (SAN) This messaging platfo
has the current capacity of six Terabytes (TB)hwulie capability of scaling to 18 Terabytes (TB)addition to mail storage being sized for
VOIP integration, web access to the mail serveniy allowed via secure HTTPs protocol. Augmenting messaging architecture is a malil
archiving solution by GFI to accommodate disasteovery, compliance and litigation requirementsMR&hticipates it will upgrade to
Microsoft Exchange 2013, currently in pilot phasegrder to capitalize on the increased flexibiktyd high availability features. Windows
Server 2012 cloud, virtualization and cross-premisapabilities are currently being evaluated twig®the best platform for the new
exchange messaging environment. Deployment toriiauption environment is scheduled for some timfisical 2014.

The Company has upgraded the ERP hardware, Apiplicahd Operating system, to accommodate its grpweeds. The branch offices of
the Company are networked to the corporate offie@private circuits, which enable the ERP appiaato be accessed securely at all
operational locations. The ERP system supportspaoywide operations such as payroll, billing, humaroteses, project systems, accol
receivable, accounts payable, all general ledgsswatting, budgeting and consolidation reportingctionality. The Company, as part of its
business process reengineering, migrated paymdigssing and HR benefits to ADP, and is contintingvaluate other aspects of its ERP
landscape to promote efficiencies, and determiad#st fit for the organization. A decision regagdihe future path of the ERP environment
is expected in the fiscal year ending January 3520

The Company also has Autotime and TES, automatesl dnd attendance systems, which augments the 8RRapplication by catering to
the needs of its diverse business offerings ardlalised workforce. The applications are housed three-tiered DELL server architecture,
and are currently servicing Canadian and U.S. edfic

The Company’s internet presence is an integralgfats strategic initiative to improve visibilitgnd contextualize its business offerings. The
company’s website has been revised, making thersite interactive, with improved web analytics. Hite also utilizes Search Engine
Optimization which allows for an enhanced user expee.

The Company is utilizing JobDiva, an applicationvgse provider (ASP) solution for sourcing candiaand fulfilling client requirements.
The integrated solution allows RCM to track alkdli requirements on an enterprise level. JobDéranfis RCM recruiters to search multiple
sources (e.g. job boards) to identify and matctabié candidates for an opportunity or need. Joailows RCM to build and maintain a
proprietary database of prequalified candidatesethy enhancing our ability to respond quickly lierd demands. Furthermore, the solution
increases visibility internally to sales persorarad the management team to manage client prioribeésnly on a localized, but a national
basis. Customized reporting and query capabilgilesv RCM management to monitor personnel perfartaaand client responsiveness. All
data and information is accessible via a web portal

In the interest of consolidation and being gree@MRs currently deploying virtualization technolofipm VMware and Microsoft. The
server footprint at the primary datacenter in Rgrany, NJ has been reduced by 60% without compognsystems integrity or redundancy.
Implementation of V-motion, fault tolerance, higkadability and centralized management are an natlggart of this solution. Green
initiatives include partnerships with vendors foe recycling of used printers, toners, serversktdgs and mobile devices.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Other Information

Safequards Business, Disaster and Contingency Planning

RCM has implemented a number of safeguards to girtite Company from various system-related riskiiging a warm data center disaster
recovery site, redundant telecommunications angeselystems architecture, multi-tiered server agsktbp backup infrastructure, and data
center physical and environmental controls. Initamlt RCM has developed disaster recovery / bissim®ntinuity procedures for all offices.

Given the significant amount of data generatethén@ompany’s key processes including recruitinigssgayroll and customer
invoicing, RCM has established redundant procedduestioning on a daily basis, within the Compangtimary data center. This
redundancy should mitigate the risks related tallware, application and data loss by utilizing thaeept of live differential backups of
servers and desktops to Storage Area Network (SfeNices on its backup LAN, culminating in offsigge storage at an independent
facility. Besides the local tape backup rotatibi@nch office systems, data is also replicateHAN devices in Parsippany to achieve
business continuity. Controls within the data ceeterironment ensure that all systems are prodgtimenitored and data is properly
archived.

Additionally, RCM has contracted and brokered styat relationships with thirgharty vendors to meet its recovery objectives adiaent of

system disruption. For example, comprehensivasetgvel agreements provided by AT&T and CiscoR@M'’s data circuits and network
devices guarantee minimal outages as well as nktedundancy and scalability. The Disaster Recosite, located at the corporate office
in Pennsauken, NJ, provides WAN, ERP, VOIP, fifgleation and messaging services should the pyiata center facility at Parsippany
become inoperable.

The Company’s ability to protect its data assetdregy damage from fire, power loss, telecommurdeetifailures, and facility violations is
critical. To address potential cyber security #hisethe Company uses Websense mail managemeites@rvilter all emails destined for the
RCMT domain before being delivered to the corporatel servers. Websense, web filtering has also beployed to safeguard the enterg
from malicious internet content. The deploymeniaérosoft Forefront / WSUS virus, spam, and pat@magement controls extends from
perimeter network to all desktops and is centnalbnitored and managed. In addition to the virus malware controls, an Intrusion
Protection System (IPS) monitors and alerts on gbsum network traffic patterns as well as knowstte signatures.

The Company maintains a disaster recovery plandiliines the recovery time / point objectives (RTRPO), organization structure, roles
and procedures, including site addendum disasamsgbr all of its key operating offices. Corperéf personnel regulate the maintenance
and integrity of backed-up data throughout the Camyp

Competition

The market for engineering and IT services is higlumpetitive and is subject to rapid change. Hesrharket demand has shifted, many
software companies have adopted tactics to pueswéss and consulting offerings making them dicmghpetitors when in the past they n
have been alliance partners. Primary competitariside participants from a variety of market segisencluding publicly and privately held
firms, systems consulting and implementation firapgplication software firms, service groups of coibep equipment companies, facilities
management companies, general management condirdtirsgand staffing companies. In addition, ther@any competes with its clients’
internal resources, particularly where these resmurepresent a fixed cost to the client. Suchpedition may impose additional pricing
pressures on the Company.

The Company believes its principal competitive adages in the engineering and IT services marltide: strong relationships with
existing clients, a long-term track record with o4€d00 clients, a broad range of services, tectheixpertise, knowledge and experience in
multiple industry sectors, quality and flexibilibf service, responsiveness to client needs andispekelivering IT solutions.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Competition (Continued)

Additionally, the Company competes for suitablewasition candidates based on its differentiatecuéition model, its entrepreneurial and
decentralized operating philosophy, and its stroorgorate-level support and resources.

Seasonality

The Company’s operating results can be affectetthépeasonal fluctuations in client expenditufgspenditures in the Engineering and
Information Technology segments can be negativafaicted during the first quarter of the year whents are finalizing their

budgets. Quarterly results generally fluctuateetheling on, among other things, the number of lgltiays in a quarter and the seasonality of
clients’ businesses. The business is also affected byrtiegtiof holidays and seasonal vacation patternsergdly resulting in lower revenu
and gross profit in the fourth quarter of each yeat considering any non-seasonal impact. Extreeegther conditions may also affect
demand in the first and fourth quarters of the ysacertain clients’ facilities are located in gexqnic areas subject to closure or reduced
hours due to inclement weather. The Company géypevgeriences an increase in its cost of salelsaacorresponding decrease in gross
profit and gross margin percentage in the first sexbnd fiscal quarters of each year as a resudtsetting certain state and federal
employment tax rates and related salary limitatioilso, the Company’s Specialty Health Care segryically experiences a significant
decline in revenues due to the substantial clostiome of its largest customers, the New York Cigpartment of Education, and other
educational institution clients during the thirdagquer due to their summer recess.

Government Regulations

The Company is a consulting firm and employmentiserprovider and is generally subject to one orevof the following types of
government regulation: (1) regulation of the empldgmployee relationship between a firm and itsleyges, including tax withholding or
reporting, social security or retirement, benefiterkplace compliance, wage and hour, anti-disaration, immigration and workers’
compensation; (2) registration, licensing, recagdping and reporting requirements; and (3) fedsmairactor compliance. The Company
believes it is in material compliance with all emyte related statutes.

Intellectual Property

Management believes the RCM Technologies, Inc. naragtremely valuable and important to its bussn@he Company endeavors to
protect its intellectual property rights and mainteertain trademarks, trade names, service mamttother intellectual property rights,
including The Source of Smart Solutions®. The Campis not currently aware of any infringing use®ther conditions that would be
reasonably likely to materially and adversely aftbe Company’s use of its proprietary rights.

Employees

As of December 28, 2013, the Company employed arirastrative, sales, recruiting and management efadpproximately 185 people,
including licensed engineers and certified IT splistis who, from time to time, participate in erggning design and IT projects undertake
the Company. As of December 28, 2013, there weapeoximately 730 engineering and technical andidffrmation technology employees
and consultants assigned by the Company to wodtient projects for various periods and there wagproximately 390 specialty health care
services employees assigned to clients. Noneeo€timpany’s employees are represented by a cobdséirgaining agreement. The
Company considers its relationship with its empésyto be good.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Access to Company Information

RCM electronically files its annual report on Fob®+K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current réoon Form 8-K and all amendments to
those reports with the Securities and Exchange desiom (“SEC”). The public may read and copy ahthe reports that are filed with the
SEC at the SEG'Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Wag#hnin DC 20549. The public may obtain informatemthe operation ¢
the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC adQ-8BEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet git&f//www.sec.qoy that contains
reports, proxies, information statements, and atifermation regarding issuers that file electratiic

RCM makes available on its website or by respontlieg of charge to requests addressed to the Corigp@orporate Secretary, its annual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form@@,Gzurrent reports on Form 8-K and all amendmemthdse reports filed by the Company
with the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15{(theoSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendéukse reports are available as soon as
reasonably practicable after such material is mdadtally filed with or furnished to the Securitiard Exchange Commission. The Company’
website is http://www.rcmt.com The information contained on the Company’s wiehsir on other websites linked to the Company’s
website, is not part of this document. Refererarein to the Company’s website is an inactive tef@érence only.

RCM has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable tofats directors, officers and employees. In a@dditthe Company has adopted a Code of
Ethics, within the meaning of applicable SEC rulgsplicable to its Chief Executive Officer, Chigh&ncial Officer and Controller. Both the
Code of Conduct and Code of Ethics are availabée, 6f charge, by sending a written request ta@Cthmpany’s Corporate Secretary. If the
Company makes any amendments to either of thesesQother than technical, administrative, or otie-substantive amendments), or
waives (explicitly or implicitly) any provision dhe Code of Ethics to the benefit of its Chief BExtaee Officer, Chief Financial Officer or
Controller, it intends to disclose the nature & &mendment or waiver, its effective date and torwiit applies in the investor relations
portion of the website, or in a report on Form 8i&d with the SEC.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The Company'’s business involves a number of ekse of which are beyond its control. The risk andertainties described below are not
the only ones the Company faces. Set forth bel@discussion of the risks and uncertainties thahagement believes to be material to the
Company.

Economic Trends

The global economic crisis that began in mid-20@ated conditions such as a general tighteningdrctedit markets, lower levels of
liquidity, increases in the rates of default andkraptcy, and volatility in credit, equity and fikéncome markets. Though these conditions
may have been somewhat alleviated, they still cometin certain respects or could return or intgrisifothers. Any or all of these
developments could negatively affect the Compahysiness, operating results or financial conditiopa number of ways. For example,
current or potential customers may be unable td tapital spending programs, new product launchegher similar endeavors whereby tl
might procure services from the Company, and tloeeedelay, decrease or cancel purchases of sexigex pay or delay paying for
previously purchased services. In addition, tleesalitions may cause the Company to incur increagpdnses or make it more difficult
either to utilize existing debt capacity or otheg@bbtain financing for operations, investing atiég (including the financing of any future
acquisitions), or financing activities, all of whicould adversely affect the Company’s businesgnitial condition and results of operations.

Government Regulations

Staffing firms and employment service providersgaaerally subject to one or more of the followipges of government regulation:

(1) regulation of the employer/employee relatiopdietween a firm and its employees, including t&khwolding or reporting, social security
or retirement, benefits, workplace compliance, waigé hour, anti-discrimination, immigration and kens’ compensation; (2) registration,
licensing, record keeping and reporting requirersieamd (3) federal contractor compliance. Faitareomply with these regulations could
result in the Company incurring penalties and ofiailities, monetary and otherwise.

Highly Competitive Business

The staffing services and outsourcing markets myfejhcompetitive and have limited barriers to gntRCM competes in global, national,
regional, and local markets with numerous temposgaiffing and permanent placement companies. Bdo®etition in the staffing industry
is significant and pricing pressures from competitand customers are increasing. In additiongtiseincreasing pressure on companies to
outsource certain areas of their business to It affishore outsourcing firms. RCM expects thatltdvel of competition will remain high in
the future, which could limit RCM’s ability to maain or increase its market share or profitabili@ur inability to compete successfully with
our competitors could adversely affect the Compsiisiness, financial condition and results of apens.

Seasonality of Business

As described in “Item 1. Business,” our operatiagults are subject to seasonal fluctuations, veittuced demand often occurring during first
guarter of the year when clients are finalizingrtleagineering and IT budgets, and also duringgaisrin which there are a substantial amount
of holidays and season vacations. In particulae, @f the largest customers in our Specialty Heatte group, the New York City
Department of Education, significantly reduces\astiduring the third quarter, when schools aresetbfor summer recess. Our operating
results for any given period may fluctuate as altex the timing of holidays, vacations and otkegents, and if we were to experience
unfavorable performance during periods in whichweeild otherwise expect to have high seasonal deyvemdnay have limited ability to
make up for such performance during periods of@ealy lower demand.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (CONTINUED)

Future Proxy Contests

Stockholders of the Company may from time to timgasge in proxy solicitations, advance stockholdeppsals or otherwise attempt to
effect changes or acquire control over the Comp&aynpaigns by stockholders to effect changes digly#traded companies are sometimes
led by investors seeking to increase short-terrokstolder value by advocating corporate actions sugcfinancial restructuring, increased
borrowing, special dividends, stock repurchasesven sales of assets or the entire company.

We recently engaged in a proxy contest with a giafupur stockholders, which culminated at our ahstackholders meeting held in
December 2013. We have since entered into asettieagreement with the stockholder group. If wedme engaged in a proxy contest"
that stockholder group or another activist stociboin the future, our business could be adversiégcted because:

« responding to proxy contests and other actionschiyist stockholders can disrupt our operationscgtly and timesonsuming, ar
divert the attention of our Board and senior mansg@ from the pursuit of business strategies, witichld adversely affect t
Company's results of operations and financial dondi

« perceived uncertainties as to our future directiera result of changes to composition of our Boaay lead to the perception ¢
change in the direction of the business, instagbditlack of continuity which may be exploited byracompetitors, cause concert
our current or potential clients, may result in kbes of potential business opportunities and niakere difficult to attract and rete
qualified personnel and business partn

« if individuals are elected to our Board with a dfie@agenda, it may adversely affect our abilityetifectively implement our busine
strategy and create additional value for our stolddrs; anc

« a consequence of a proxy contest could be thaeittaally results in a “change in contraf the Company as such event is def
in the various agreements between the Company artdirt key members of management which could ensitich members
terminate their employment with the Company an@irecseverance payments which, if incurred, mayensly impact the financi
condition of the Compan

Events Affecting Significant Customers

As disclosed in “Item 1. Business,” the Companye ften and twenty largest customers accountedgproximately 45.2%, 56.5% and
65.6%, respectively, of revenues for the fiscalrysaled December 28, 2013. During the fiscal gealed December 28, 2013, Ontario
Power Group (the Company primarily services OntBaaver Generation as a subcontractor through BdackMcDonald Limited) and Uniti
Technologies Corporation accounted for 18.6% an@%af the Company’s revenues, respectively. Tam@any’s customers may be
affected by the current state of the economy oeligments in the credit markets or may engage imgens or similar transactions. In
addition, customers may choose to reduce the bassihey do with RCM for other reasons or no reastmuld any significant customers
experience a downturn in their business that wesikegir financial condition or merge with anothempany or otherwise cease independent
operation, or limit their relationship with usjstpossible that the business that the customes wih the Company would be reduced or
eliminated, which could adversely affect the Comyabusiness, financial condition and results ofmaions.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (CONTINUED)

Safety Concerns Regarding Nuclear Power Plants; Liitations on Insurance

Especially in light of the Fukushima Daiichi nualggant malfunction that occurred in March 2011wrand existing concerns are being
expressed in public forums about the safety ofearojenerating units and nuclear fuel. Among athiegs, these concerns have led to, and
are expected to continue to lead to, various pralgdse regulators and governing bodies in somdit@smawhere nuclear facilities are located
for legislative and regulatory changes that coalttito the shutown of nuclear units, denial of license renewalli@ations, municipalizatio

of nuclear units, restrictions on nuclear unit®threr adverse effects on owning and operating augjenerating units. Should these concerns
or proposals lead to a diminishment of or reduaeavth in the nuclear power industry, the Compargigineering segment, which has a
focus on the nuclear power industry, could be hdrraad the Company’s business, financial conditind results of operations could be
materially adversely affected.

In addition, our liability insurance does not coaecidents occurring at nuclear power faciliti€&hould we be found to be responsible for
such an event, we may not be able to cover relakmgages, and our business would be adverselytedtec

Subcontractors, Transit Accounts Receivable and Tnasit Accounts Payables Related to Construction Margement Contracts

The Company’s Engineering segment has enterecaimamgements to provide construction managemengéagitheering services to
customers under which arrangements the Companyethgamges subcontractors to provide the construstorices. Ultimately, as a primary
contractor, the Company is responsible for the edigpmance or negligence of its subcontractors,mitee Company requires to be
adequately insured and to issue performance bamdkdir assignment. Should a subcontractor ndbpa or act negligently and should
there be inadequate insurance or performance homdace, the Company might not be able to mitigat@rimary liability to the customer,
and the Company’s business, financial conditionrasdlts of operations could be materially advegraffiected. In addition, while payments
to subcontractors typically are due from the Comypamly after the Company receives payment fromultienate customer, the Company
faces the risk that, should a customer not paymapany, or should a subcontractor demand paymeamtthe Company prior to the
Company’s receipt of payment from its customer,Gloenpany’s business, financial condition and raesoiitoperations could be materially
adversely affected.

Dependence Upon Personnel

The Company’s operations depend on the continded®bf its officers and other executive manageimdie loss of key officers and
members of executive management may cause a smmiifilisruption to the Company’s business. We hagently experienced management
changes, with our former President and Chief Exeeudfficer announcing his retirement effective Relyy 28, 2014. His retirement could
have an adverse impact on our customer and empleja@®nships. We have named a new President aref Executive Officer who has a
long history with our Company, but his transitiorthe role may be slower or more difficult than aveicipate.

RCM also depends on the performance and producti¥its local managers and field personnel. ThenBany’s ability to attract and retain
new business is significantly affected by locahtieinships and the quality of service renderede [68s of key managers and field personnel
may also jeopardize existing client relationshipghwusinesses that continue to use the Compaerysces based upon past relationships
with local managers and field personnel. In otddulfill the requirements of the Company’s custrs) the Company must be able to recruit
and retain appropriate personnel for client assgmts
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (CONTINUED)

Revolving Credit Facility and Liquidity

If the Company were unable to borrow under its Rarg Credit Facility (see “Item 7. Management'ss€ussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity &wpital Resources — Financing Activities”), it magversely affect liquidity, results of
operations and financial condition. The Compatigsidity depends on its ability to generate suféfitt cash flows from operations and, from
time to time, borrowings under the Revolving Crésitility with the Company’s agent lender Citiz&8@nk of Pennsylvania. The Company
believes that Citizens Bank is liquid and is notesvof any current risk that they will become lllid. At December 28, 2013, the Company
had no outstanding borrowings under the Revolvired& Facility and $0.8 million outstanding undettérs of credit.

The Revolving Credit Facility contains various fircéal and norfinancial covenants. At December 28, 2013, the @amy was in complianc
with the covenants and other provisions of the €ifeakility. Any failure to be in compliance coutdve a material adverse effect on liquic
results of operations and financial condition.

Workers’ Compensation and Employee Medical Insurane

The Company self-insures a portion of the expoBurtosses related to workers’ compensation andl@yeps’ medical insurance. The
Company has established reserves for workers’ cosgtion and employee medical insurance claims baisdstorical loss statistics and
periodic independent actuarial valuations. Sigaifiit differences in actual experience or significdranges in assumptions may materially
affect the Company’s future financial results.

Improper Activities of Temporary Professionals Coutl Result in Damage to Business Reputation, Discontiation of Client
Relationships and Exposure to Liability

The Company may be subject to claims by clientsteel to errors and omissions, misuse of proprietdoymation, discrimination and
harassment, theft and other criminal activity, madgice, and other claims stemming from the impr@mivities or alleged activities of
temporary professionals. There can be no assuthateurrent liability insurance coverage will&@gequate or will continue to be availabl
sufficient amounts to cover damages or other asdeciated with such claims.

Claims raised by clients stemming from the imprapetions of temporary professionals, even if withmerit, could cause the Company to
incur significant expense associated with reworit€or other damages related to such claims. &umibre, such claims by clients could
damage the Company'’s business reputation and iegtk discontinuation of client relationships.

Acquisitions May Not Succeed

The Company reviews prospective acquisitions asl@ment of its growth strategy. The failure of ayguisition to meet the Company’s
expectations, whether due to a failure to succigsfilegrate any future acquisition or otherwisggy result in damage to the Company’s
financial performance and/or divert managementendibn from its core operations or could negayiafect the Company'’s ability to meet
the needs of its customers promptly.

International Operations

The Company operates its business in Canada aade#s significant extent, in Puerto Rico. Ferfiscal year ended December 28, 2013,
approximately 23.5% of the Company'’s revenues wereerated outside the United States. There ar@irteisks inherent in conducting
business internationally including: the impositifitrade barriers, foreign exchange restrictidmsger payment cycles, greater difficulties in
accounts receivables collection, difficulties inrgaying with a variety of foreign laws, changedegal or regulatory requirements, difficult
in staffing and managing foreign operations, peditinstability and potentially adverse tax consames. To the extent the Company
experiences these risks, the business and resufemtions could be adversely affected.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (CONTINUED)

Foreign Currency Fluctuations and Changes in Exchage Rates

The Company is exposed to risks associated wigidgarcurrency fluctuations and changes in exchaatgs. RCM’s exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations relates to operations in @angrincipally conducted through its Canadian gliag/. Exchange rate fluctuations affect
the U.S. dollar value of reported earnings derifrech the Canadian operations as well as the cagryatue of the Company’s investment in
the net assets related to these operations. Thgp&uwoy does not engage in hedging activities wispeet to foreign operations.

Trademarks

Management believes the RCM Technologies, Inc. rnaragtremely valuable and important to its bussn@he Company endeavors to
protect its intellectual property rights and maiimteertain trademarks, trade names, service marttother intellectual property rights,
including The Source of Smart Solutions®. The Campis not currently aware of any infringing usesther conditions that would be
reasonably likely to materially and adversely aftbe Company’s use of its proprietary rights. Twmpany’s success depends on its ability
to successfully obtain and maintain, and prevesappropriation or infringement of, its intellectgpabperty, maintain trade secret protection,
and conduct operations without violating or infiimgyon the intellectual property rights of thirdrfi@s. Intellectual property litigation is
expensive and time-consuming, and it is often cliffi if not impossible, to predict the outcomesath litigation. If the Company is involved
in an intellectual property litigation, its busise$inancial condition and results of operationsldde materially adversely affected.

Data Center Capacity and Telecommunication Links

Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS), card key accBss suppression, and environmental control systprotect RCM’s datacenter. All
systems are monitored on a 24/7 basis with aledapgbilities via voice or email. The telecommatimns architecture at RCM utilizes
managed private circuits from AT&T, which encompsprovisioning redundancy and diversity.

The Company'’s ability to protect its data centaaiagt damage from fire, power loss, telecommuroeetifailure and other disasters is critical
to business operations. In order to provide mdnisservices, RCM must be able to store, retrigvecess and manage large databases and
periodically expand and upgrade its capabilitidey damage to the Company’s data centers or ahyréanf the Company’s
telecommunication links that interrupts its opemas or results in an inadvertent loss of data caditersely affect the Company’s ability to
meet its customers’ needs and their confidencdilining the Company for future services.

RCM'’s ability to protect its data, provide servi@wl safeguard its installations, as it relatebeéd T infrastructure, is in part dependent on
several outside vendors with whom the Company ra@istservice level agreements.

Litigation
The Company is currently, and may in the futureobee, involved in legal proceedings and claims lagigiom time to time in the course of

its business. An adverse outcome in any suclatitg could have an adverse impact on the condetidénancial position, consolidated
results of operations and cash flows of the Company
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company provides specialty professional comguftervices, principally performed at various wlications, through 26 administrative
and sales offices located in the United Statesit®@ico and Canada. The majority of the Companoffises typically consist of 1,000 to
15,000 square feet and are typically leased bytmapany for terms of one to three years. Offiodsiger or smaller markets may vary in
size from the typical office. The Company doesexqiect that it will be difficult to maintain omfil suitable lease space at reasonable rates il
its markets or in areas where the Company contdagpéxpansion.

The Company’s executive office is located at 250CMIlan Avenue, Suite 350, Pennsauken, New J&X8&99-4613. These premises
consist of approximately 11,200 square feet andessed at a rate of approximately $14.50 per sgigat per annum for a term ending on
June 30, 2020.

The Company’s operational office is located at 2&t&Wwiew Boulevard, # Floor, Parsippany, NJ 07054-1271. These premisesist of

approximately 16,000 square feet and are leasadate of approximately $21.00 per square foopaum for a term ending on October 31,
2018.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Included in the Company’s accounts payable andiadcexpenses is a provision for losses from legdtars aggregating approximately $0.2
million as of December 28, 2013. Asserted claimthese matters seek approximately $10.7 milliodamages as of December 28, 2013.

The Company is also subject to other pending Ipgadeedings and claims that arise from time to tim#nhe ordinary course of its busine
which may not be covered by insurance.

See further discussion of Legal Proceedings in N6téContingencies) to the consolidated finandiaiesnents included in Item 8 of this
Report.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Shares of the Company’s common stock are tradéicherNASDAQ Global Market under the Symbol “RCMTThe following table sets
forth approximate high and low sales prices fortthe years in the period ended December 28, 2018pmsted by The NASDAQ Global
Market:

Common Stock

Fiscal Year Ended December 29, 201 High Low
First Quartel $5.8¢ $5.0¢
Second Quarte $6.1¢ $4.8¢
Third Quartel $5.7¢ $5.2:
Fourth Quarte $6.72 $5.0¢

Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 201
First Quarte! $6.31 $5.0(
Second Quarte $6.2¢ $5.2¢
Third Quartel $6.1( $5.2¢
Fourth Quarte $6.9¢ $5.7¢

Holders

As of February 10, 2014, the approximate numbérodders of record of the Company’s Common Stock #k& Based upon the requests for
proxy information in connection with the Compan2®13 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the Comparlieies the number of beneficial
owners of its Common Stock is approximately 3,077.

Dividends

On December 27, 2012, the Company paid to stockihelof record on December 20, 2012 a time- special cash dividend of $1.00 per sl
of common stock. Prior to fiscal 2012, the Comphag never paid any dividend on the Common Stddie Company also accrued $1.00
per share on 350,000 unvested restricted stock.uifithe restricted stock units contain a dividequalivalent provision entitling holders to
dividends paid between the restricted stock grate dnd ultimate share distribution date. Thewsstdividend will be paid when the
restricted stock units vest in November 2015, wHilédends on forfeited restricted stock units aiko be forfeited.

Approximately 14.5% of the one-time special cashdgind was treated as an ordinary taxable dividemtthe approximate balance of 85.5%
was treated as a return of capital to the extethiefecipient’s tax basis, or a capital gain thées.

The Company’s Board of Directors believes thatingtg earnings to finance the development and esiparof the Company’s business is in
the best interest of RCM and its shareholders agpdwture payment of dividends will depend uponpagother things, the Company’s
earnings, financial condition, capital requiremetdsel of indebtedness, contractual restricti@amg] other factors that the Board of Directors
deems relevant. The Revolving Credit Facility dssussed in Item 7 hereof) prohibits the payméminy dividends or distributions on
account of the Company’s capital stock withoutghier consent of the majority of the Compasjénders. Such consent was received pr|
the December 27, 2012 distribution.
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ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Stock Repurchase by Issuer

No repurchases of common stock were made by thep@oynfrom September 28, 2013 through December@B3.2For more informatio
regarding the Company’s common stock repurchasgrano see Note 12 (Treasury Stock Transaction$)arconsolidated financial
statements included in Item 8 of this report.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Not required
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

RCM participates in a market that is cyclical irura and sensitive to economic changes. As atrékalimpact of economic changes on
revenues and operations can be substantial, mgirtisignificant volatility in the Company’s fineial performance.

The Company experienced an increase in revenuagydhe fiscal year ended December 28, 2013 as amdo the comparable prior year
period. The Company experienced revenue growtld @98, 5.9% and 6.5% in its Engineering, Informafi@thnology and Specialty Health
Care segments, respectively. The Company is aalfi@ptimistic that overall results for fiscal 2D4¢hould improve as compared to fiscal
2013.

The Company believes it has developed and asserablatiractive portfolio of capabilities, estabégha proven record of performance and
credibility and built an efficient pricing structur The Company is committed to optimizing its bess model as a single-source premier
provider of business and technology solutions wititirong vertical focus offering an integratedesoit services through a global delivery
platform.

The Company believes that most companies recodgimézenportance of advanced technologies and busipregesses to compete in today’s
business climate. However, the process of degiguiaveloping and implementing business and tecigyatolutions is becoming
increasingly complex. The Company believes thatynfausinesses today are focused on return on imessgtanalysis in prioritizing their
initiatives. This has had an adverse impact omdipg by current and prospective clients for mamgrgying new solutions.

Nonetheless, the Company continues to believebilisihesses must implement more advanced enginesrthgnformation technoloc
solutions to upgrade their systems, applicatioms@ncesses so that they can maximize their prodiycand optimize their performance in
order to maintain a competitive advantage. Althougrking under budgetary, personnel and expectsstraints, companies are driven to
support increasingly complex systems, applicatams processes of significant strategic value. hhsgiven rise to a demand for
outsourcing. The Company believes that its curaewit prospective clients are continuing to evaltiaepotential for outsourcing business
critical systems, applications and processes.

The Company provides project management and camgsiervices, which are billed based on eitheredppon fixed fees or hourly rates,
a combination of both. The billing rates and grofargins for project management and solutionsicesvare generally higher than those for
professional consulting services. The Company @gdéigeendeavors to expand its sales of higher mesglutions and project management
services. The Company also realizes revenues dtiemt engagements that range from the placemecdrfact and temporary technical
consultants to project assignments that entaititliwery of end-to-end solutions. These servigegpamarily provided to the client at hourly
rates that are established for each of the Compamyisultants based upon their skill level, expegeand the type of work performed.

The majority of the Company’s services are provideder purchase orders. Contracts are utilizeckotain of the more complex
assignments where the engagements are for longes t& where precise documentation on the natwteseope of the assignment is
necessary. Although contracts normally relatetmér-term and more complex engagements, they dobtigate the customer to purchase a
minimum level of services and are generally termiady the customer on 60 to 90 dagstice. The Company, from time to time, enters
contracts requiring the completion of specific detables. Typically these contracts are for lbas tone year. The Company recognizes
revenue on these deliverables at the time thetaierepts and approves the deliverables.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Overview (Continued)

Costs of services consist primarily of salaries emthpensation-related expenses for billable coastdtand employees, including payroll
taxes, employee benefits and insurance. Selliegeigl and administrative expenses consist priynafisalaries and benefits of personnel
responsible for business development, recruitipgrating activities, and training, and include cvgte overhead expenses. Corporate
overhead expenses relate to salaries and bengfiessonnel responsible for corporate activitias|uding the Company’s corporate
marketing, administrative and financial reportiegponsibilities and acquisition program. The Comyp&cords these expenses when
incurred.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s consolidated financial statementeweepared in accordance with U.S. generally aede@tcounting principles, which
require management to make subjective decisiosssaments and estimates about the effect of m#ttdrare inherently uncertain. As the
number of variables and assumptions affectingutdgrent increases, such judgments become evensuljective. While management
believes its assumptions are reasonable and ajguepactual results may be materially differentirestimated. Management has identified
certain critical accounting policies, describedobelthat require significant judgment to be exexdiby management.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenues from several ssurthe Compang’ Engineering Services and Information Technologyvise:
segments perform consulting and project soluti@rgices. All of the Compang’segments perform staff augmentation servicesdanie
revenue from permanent placement fees. The majufrthe Company’s revenues are invoiced on a inematerials basis.

Project Service- The Company recognizes revenues in accordanbe‘Révenue Recognition” which clarifies applicatiohU.S. generally
accepted accounting principles to revenue trarmati Project services are generally provided oos-plus, fixed-fee or time-and-material
basis. Typically, a customer will outsource a e project or activity and the Company assumgsarsibility for the performance of such
project or activity. The Company recognizes rews=nand associated costs on a gross basis as seaaxgcprovided to the customer and costs
are incurred using its employees. The Company fime to time, enters into contracts requiring ¢benpletion of specific deliverables. T
Company may recognize revenues on these delivarablbe time the client accepts and approvesdligetdables. In instances where proj
services are provided on a fixed-price basis aad:tmtract will extend beyond a 12-month periodeneie is recorded in accordance with the
terms of each contract. In some instances, revisniled at the time certain milestones are redglas defined in the contract. Revenues
under these arrangements are recognized as tleearoiiese contracts are incurred. Amounts indoiice&xcess of revenues recognized are
recorded as deferred revenue, included in accqayable and accrued expenses on the accompanyargeaheets. In other instances,
revenue is billed and recorded based upon contabites per hour (i.e., percentage of completionaddition, some contracts contain
“Performance Fees” (bonuses) for completing a emttunder budget. Performance Fees, if any, agded when earned. Some contracts
also limit revenues and billings to specified mastimamounts. Provision for contract losses, if @mg,made in the period such losses are
determined. For contracts where there is a delbler the work is not complete on a specific detitée and the revenue is not recognized
costs are deferred. The associated costs are segp@rhen the related revenue is recognized.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Consulting and Staffing ServicdRevenues derived from consulting and staffing sesvare recorded on a gross basis as services are
performed and associated costs have been incusimeg @mployees of the Company. These servicetypieally billed on a time and mater
basis.

In certain cases, the Company may utilize otherpamies and their employees to fulfill customer fegruents. In these cases, the Company
receives an administrative fee for arranging fdlinig for, and collecting the billings related these companies. The customer is typically
responsible for assessing the work of these corapamino have responsibility for acceptability ofitlgersonnel to the customer. Under tr
circumstances, the Company’s reported revenuesedref associated costs (effectively recogniziregrtat administrative fee only).

Transit Receivables and Transit Payabl€sem time to time, the Company’s Engineering segreeaters into agreements to provide, among
other things, construction management and engimgegrvices. In certain circumstances, the Compaay acquire equipment as a
purchasing agent for the client for a fee. Purstmthese agreements, the Company may: a) engégerstractors to provide construction or
other services or contracts with manufacturersedralf of the Company’s clients to procure equipnarfixtures; b) typically earns a fixed
percentage of the total project value or a negediatark-up on subcontractor or procurement chaagesfee and c) assumes no ownership or
risks of inventory. In such situations, the Compaats as an agent under the provisions of “Ov€rafisiderations of Reporting Revenue
Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent” agrefbre recognizing revenue on a “net-basis.” Chenpany records revenue on a “net”
basis on relevant engineering and construction gemant projects, which require subcontractor/prexent costs or transit costs. In those
situations, the Company charges the client a naigatifee, which is reported as net revenue wheredarSimilarly, the Company’s
Information Technology segment acts as an ager# foajor staffing client. The Company managessthffing requirements for a division
the client and numerous staffing agencies proviaf and the Company collects a service fee. Qutie fifty-two week period ended
December 28, 2013, total gross billings, includigh transit cost billings and the Company’s earfieed, was $67.3 million, for which the
Company recognized $30.7 million of its net feeeasenue. During the fifty-two week period endeccBmber 29, 2012, total gross billings,
including both transit cost billings and the Comyarearned fees, was $64.8 million, for which then@any recognized $15.3 million of its
net fee as revenue.

Under the terms of the agreements, the Companypiisatly not required to pay the subcontractor uritt,eEngineering contracts or staffing
agencies under the Information Technology contnatit after the corresponding payment from the Camys client is received. Upon
invoicing the end client on behalf of the subcociwaor staffing agency the Company records thisamsimultaneously as both a “transit
account receivable” and “transit account payabteth@ amount when paid to the Company is due tagyandrally paid to the subcontractor
within a few days. The Company typically does @y a given transit account payable until the eeldtansit account receivable is
collected. The Company’s transit accounts payablally exceeds the Company’s transit accountsvaige but absolute amounts and
spreads fluctuate significantly from quarter toeiain the normal course of business. The tragibunts receivable was $4.0 million and
related transit accounts payable was $3.9 milkonet receivable of $0.1 million, as of December2za 3.

Permanent Placement Servic- The Company earns permanent placement fees fromidprg permanent placement services. Fee
placements are recognized at the time the candid@i@mences employment. The Company guarantegseitaanent placements ol
prorated basis for 90 days. In the event a catalidanot retained for the 3fay period, the Company will provide a suitablelaepmer
candidate. In the event a replacement candidaeotdoe located, the Company will provide a pratatfund to the client. An allowance
refunds, based upon the Company’s historical egped, is recorded in the financial statements.eRees are recorded on a gross basis.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Accounts Receivable

The Company’s accounts receivable are primarilyfdoa trade customers. Credit is extended baseslvatuation of customers’ financial
condition and, generally, collateral is not reqdirédccounts receivable payment terms vary andgtted in the financial statements at
amounts due from customers net of an allowancddabtful accounts. Accounts outstanding longen tin@ payment terms are considered
past due. The Company determines its allowanahsgidering a number of factors, including the tbraf time trade accounts receivable
past due, the Company’s previous loss historycttstomer’s current ability to pay its obligationtt® Company and the condition of the
general economy and the industry as a whole. Tdmepany writes off accounts receivable when theybecuncollectible.

The Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts desed by approximately $0.2 million to $1.0 millias of December 28, 2013 from $1.2
million as of December 29, 2012. The decreasepniazarily due to the Company’s decision to writé cértain older accounts receivable as
these amounts were deemed uncollectible.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the premium paid over thevialue of the net tangible and intangible assetsiaed,in business combinations. The
Company is required to assess the carrying valits oéporting units that contain goodwill at leastan annual basis in order to determine if
any impairment in value has occurred. The Comeasythe option to first assess qualitative fadimidetermine whether it is necessary to
perform a two-step impairment test. An assessniethibge qualitative factors or the applicationto# goodwill impairment test requires
significant judgment including but not limited toet assessment of the business, its managemeneaathgmarket conditions, estimation of
future cash flows, which is dependent on internatéasts, estimation of the long-term rate of ghofet the businesses, the useful life over
which cash flows will occur and determination ofiglged average cost of capital. Changes in themates and assumptions could
materially affect the determination of fair valugdéor conclusions on goodwill impairment for eaeparting unit. The Company formally
assesses these qualitative factors and, if negessarducts its annual goodwill impairment tesbathe last day of the Company’s fiscal
November each year, or more frequently if indicamirimpairment exist. The Company periodicallplgmes whether any such indicators
impairment exist. A significant amount of judgméntnvolved in determining if an indicator of impaent has occurred. Such indicators
may include a sustained, significant decline irrshpice and market capitalization, a decline ipested future cash flows, a significant
adverse change in legal factors or in the busické®ssite, unanticipated competition, a material gwim management or other key personnel
and/or slower expected growth rates, among otHete to the thin trading of the Company stock im plublic marketplace and the impact of
the control premium held by a relatively few shailders, the Company does not consider the markustatiaation of the Company the most
appropriate measure of fair value of goodwill for oeporting units. The Company looks to earniry@nue multiples of similar companies
recently completing acquisitions and the abilityoaf reporting units to generate cash flows aebeteasures of the fair value of our
reporting units. The Company compares the famealf each of its reporting units to their respectiarrying values, including related
goodwill. There can be no assurance that futugts @& goodwill impairment will not result in impaient charges.

Long-Lived and Intangible Assets
The Company evaluates long-lived assets and irtiengssets with definite lives for impairment whesreevents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset noayoa recoverable. When it is probable that urtdiated future cash flows will not be

sufficient to recover an asset’s carrying amourd,dsset is written down to its fair value. Assetse disposed of by sale, if any, are reported
at the lower of the carrying amount or fair valaed cost to sell.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Accounting for Stock Options and Restricted Stock WUits

The Company uses stock options and restricted stoite to attract, retain and reward employeesldag-term service. The Compa
follows “Share-Based Payment,” which requires it compensation cost relating to stdidsed payment transactions be recogniz
financial statements. This compensation cost iasued based on the fair value of the equity dailitg instruments issued. The Compi
measures stock-based compensation cost using #o&-Btholes option pricing model for stock options &mel fair value of the underlyii
common stock at the date of grant for restrictedkstinits.

Insurance Liabilities

The Company has risk participation arrangementis reispect to workers compensation and health nateance. The Company establishes
loss provisions based on historical experienceimatige case of expected losses from workers conapiens considers input from third
parties. The amounts included in the Company’ssaadated to this risk participation are estimaad can vary based on changes in
assumptions, the Company'’s claims experience opribviders included in the associated insurancgraros.

Accounting for Income Taxes

In establishing the provision for income taxes datkrred income tax assets and liabilities, andatadn allowances against deferred tax
assets, the Company makes judgments and inteipretdtased on enacted tax laws, published tax go&and estimates of future
earnings. As of December 28, 2013, the Companydbatestic short term deferred tax assets of $Ul@mitotal domestic long term net
deferred income tax assets of $1.6 million andifprehort-term deferred tax liability of $0.1 mili. The domestic short term deferred tax
assets primarily represent the tax effect of aatri@enses which will be deductible for tax purgoséhin a twelve month period. The
domestic long term deferred tax assets represenatheffect of temporary differences for the GA¥d?sus tax amortization of intangibles
arising from acquisitions made in prior periodRealization of deferred tax assets is dependemi tipolikelihood that future taxable income
will be sufficient to realize these benefits ovierd, and the effectiveness of tax planning straegi the relevant tax jurisdictions. In the
event that actual results differ from these esti®aind assessments, valuation allowances may bieerbq

The Company conducts its operations in multiplejaaisdictions in the United States, Puerto Ricd &anada. With limited exceptions, the
Company is no longer subject to audits by statelacal tax authorities for tax years prior to 200he Companyg federal income tax retur
have been examined through 2010.

The Company'’s future effective tax rates could theeasely affected by changes in the valuationsofiéferred tax assets or liabilities or
changes in tax laws or interpretations thereo&ddition, the Company is subject to the examinadibits income tax returns by the Internal
Revenue Service and other tax authorities. The @ompegularly assesses the likelihood of adverseomes resulting from these
examinations to determine the adequacy of its giorifor income taxes.

During the fifty-two week period ended December 2®] 3, the Company reduced an unrecognized taXibeh&0.5 million due to the
expiration of the statute of limitations on sudmitand recorded an unrecognized tax reserve ofr@lad to research and development tax
credits filed under amended federal returns foryears 2009 and 2010. There were no changes ¢ézcagmized tax benefits during the
comparable prior year period.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Accrued Bonuses

The Company pays bonuses to certain executive neamagf, field management and corporate employeesilmas or after giving
consideration to, a variety of financial performamseasures. Executive management, field managemdrtertain corporate employees’
bonuses are accrued throughout the year for paytheintg the first quarter of the following yearsed in part upon anticipated annual res
compared to annual budgets. In addition, the Camppays discretionary bonuses to certain employekich are not related to budget
performance. Variances in actual results versugétad amounts can have a significant impact ocdlmilations and therefore on the
estimates of the required accruals. Accordindlg,dctual earned bonuses may be materially différem the estimates used to determine
quarterly accruals.

Forward-looking Information

The Company’s growth prospects are influenced lbadhieconomic trends. The pace of customer cagmtaiding programs, new product
launches and similar activities have a direct inhjpacthe need for engineering and information tedtgy services. When the U.S., Canac
or global economies decline, the Company’s opeggigrformance could be adversely impacted. Thepgaom believes that its fiscal
discipline, strategic focus on targeted verticathats and diversification of service offerings p®s some insulation from adverse
trends. However, declines in the economy couldltés the need for future cost reductions or ctemnig strategy.

Additionally, changes in government regulationslda@sult in prohibition or restriction of certaiypes of employment services or the
imposition of new or additional employee benefitgnsing or tax requirements with respect to ttavision of employment services that n
reduce the Company’s future earnings. There camlassurance that the Company will be able teas® the fees charged to its clients in a
timely manner and in a sufficient amount to coveréased costs as a result of any of the foregoing.

The consulting and employment services marketghklijicompetitive with limited barriers to entry.h& Company competes in global,
national, regional and local markets with numercaspetitors in all of the Company’s service lin€gice competition in the industries the
Company serves is significant, and pricing presstn@n competitors and customers are increasirige Jompany expects that the level of
competition will remain high in the future, whicbudd limit the Company’s ability to maintain or me@se its market share or profitability.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Results of Operations ($ in thousands)

Fiscal Years Ende

December 28, 201 December 29, 201
% of
Amount % of Revenu Amount Revenue

Revenue! $170,77! 100.( $145,81 100.C
Cost of service 126,41 74.C 106,10. 72.€
Gross profit 44,36 26.C 39,71¢ 27.2
Selling, general and administrati 35,51« 20.¢ 33,16¢ 221
Severance and other char 5,181 3.C - -
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,111 0.7 1,321 0.6
41,80¢ 24.5 34,48" 23.€
Operating incom: 2,55¢ 1.t 5,22¢ 3.€
Other income (expense), r 32 .C 10z 0.1
Income before income tax 2,58 1.t 5,33( 3.7
Income tax expens 597 0.2 2,10: 1.5
Net income $1,99( 1.2 $3,221 2.2

The above summary is not a presentation of restibperations under generally accepted accountimgiples in the United States of
America and should not be considered in isolatioasoan alternative to results of operations agdination of the Company’s performance.

The Company follows a 52/53 week fiscal reportiatendar ending on the Saturday closest to DeceBibeBoth of the fiscal years ended
December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012 had fiftyweeks.

Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2013 Compared to E& Year Ended December 29, 2012

Revenues. Revenues increased 17.1%, or $25.0 million,Herfiscal year ended December 28, 2013 as compated prior fiscal year (the
“comparable prior year period”). Revenues incrdé&20.1 million in the Engineering segment, $3.1lioni in the Information Technology
segment and $1.8 million in the Specialty HealtheGaegment. See Segment Discussion for furtherrirdtion on revenue changes.

Cost of Services. Cost of services increased 19.1%, or $20.3 millfor the fiscal year ended December 28, 2013 awpared to the
comparable prior year period. Cost of servicea psrcentage of revenues increased to 74.0% fdistted year ended December 28, 2013
from 72.8% for the comparable prior year periodhe Thcrease in cost of services as a percentagevefiues was primarily due to a reduction
in higher margin project work for both the Compankgngineering and Information Technology segméigher non-billable labor expenses
associated with the Engineering segment’s Candgligmeering division and Facilities Design group am increase in the costsdrvices a

a percentage of revenues in the Compsu8pecialty Health Care segment. See Segment$3iscufor further information regarding chan

in cost of services as a percentage of revenues.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2013 Compared to E& Year Ended December 29, 2012 (Continued)

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative (“SGA”) expes increased 7.1%, or $2.3 million, for the fiscal
year ended December 28, 2013 as compared to theacabie prior year period. SGA expense as a p&gernf revenues increased to 20
for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2013 as aoedto 22.7% for the comparable prior year perida: increase in SGA expense was
primarily due increased investments in personnéliafiastructure necessary to support higher ressmamd due the operations acquired ir
BGA acquisition effective in July 2012 which addggproximately $0.8 million in SGA expense in thereat year as compared to the
comparable prior year period. The decrease to 8&p&nse as a percentage of revenues was primaglyodan increase in revenues.

Severance and Other Charges.The Company experienced $5.2 million in severamzkother charges for the fiscal year ended Deeemb
28, 2013 as compared to zero for the comparabbe peiar period. The Company incurred expensed & Rillion related to events leading
to the election to our Board of Directors on Decenth 2013 of two candidates nominated by a grdupuostockholders and the subsequent
retirement of Leon Kopyt, the Company’s Presidemt &hief Executive Officer, which was later agrée@nd will become effective on
February 28, 2014. The Company incurred severandether related expenses of $2.9 million asatretthe retirement of Mr.

Kopyt. The Company incurred $1.6 million relatedtie proxy contest leading to the December 5, 28d&holder meeting, consisting of
$1.0 million incurred by the Company and $0.6 raiilincurred by the stockholder group, which the @any agreed to reimburse. The
Company also incurred $0.5 million in facilitiesnsmlidation charges and $0.2 million in professideas related to a research and
development tax credit study. The facilities cdigltion charges were incurred because the Compddghadian operations elected to
consolidate its Mississauga location into its exjgghPickering location and closed its Mason, Offfice

Other Income, Net. Other income, net consists of interest expensased line fees and amortized loan costs on thep@oyis loan
agreement, net of interest income, gains and lagséareign currency transactions and any otheramearating items incurred from time to
time. The Company reduced its contingent conaidar for both the fiscal year ended December 2&32and the comparable prior year
period by $0.1 million.

Income Tax Expense. The Company recognized $0.6 million of incomeeapense for the fifty-two week period ended Decen#8, 2013

as compared to $2.1 million for the comparablerpy&ar period. Income tax expense for the fiftptweek period ended December 28, 2013
reflects a reduction by $0.5 million resulting fr@ameduction in a previously unrecognized tax bie&fiscrete adjustment”). The
consolidated effective income tax rate for the entiperiod prior to the impact of the discrete atipent was 41.4% as compared to 39.5%
the comparable prior year period. The consolidefézttive income tax rate increased for the fifiye week period ended December 28, Z

as compared to the comparable prior year periadarily because the Company experienced lower boodme in the United States than the
comparable prior year period and as a result isiprent tax differences had a greater impact aroitsolidated effective tax rate.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2013 Compared to E& Year Ended December 29, 2012 (Continued)
Segment Discussion (See Note 14 to the Consolidatédancial Statements)
Engineering

Engineering revenues of $86.7 million in the fiftye week period ended December 28, 2013 increa2ed $nillion, or 30.2%, as compared
to the comparable prior year period. The increaag pvimarily due to an increase in revenues ofGsllion in the Company’s Canadian
Engineering group and the Company’s July 2012 aitipi of certain assets of BGA, LLC (“BGA”) whiatontributed an increase in
revenues of $3.6 million. The Engineering segnogerating income was $4.3 million for the fiftyo week period ended December 28, -
as compared to $3.1 million for the comparablemy&ar period. Operating income increased primatile to the substantial increase in
revenues and was offset by an increase in SGA eepein$2.2 million and an increase in cost of sEwias a percentage of revenues. SGA
expenses increased due to the BGA acquisitiongtidfie July 2012), which contributed $0.8 millionescess over the comparable prior year
period, as well as increased investment in the Gmyls Canadian Engineering division and the Teddrfublications group as both have
experienced increased demand for their servickg Ehgineering segment also incurred $0.3 millilonanfecurring charges as a result of
Canadian operations decision to consolidate itsigsiuga location into its expanded Pickering lonadditionally, the Engineering
segment experienced a higher allocation of corpdB&A expense due to increased revenues. Costhwides as a percentage of revenues
primarily increased due to a large fixed pricedtcaet with costs that exceeded estimates.

Information Technology

Information Technology revenues of $55.3 milliorthe fifty-two week period ended December 28, 2btBeased $3.1 million, or 5.9%, as
compared to the comparable prior year period. Gtmmpany believes the increase in revenue was phnadiributable to the impact of
changes made to the management and sales teaats 20IL1 and early 2012 and improved market camtditi The Information Technology
segment operating income was $1.9 million for fftg-fwo week period ended December 28, 2013 aspaoed to $1.1 million in the
comparable prior year period. The increase inapgy income was primarily due to an increase ienees.

Specialty Health Care

Specialty Health Care revenues of $28.8 milliothia fifty-two week period ended December 28, 2013dased $1.8 million, or 6.5%, as
compared to the comparable prior year period. primaary reason for the increase in the revenuethiSpecialty Health Care segment
related to an increase in revenues from the segmeonolulu office of $3.6 million, offset by decees of $1.6 million and $0.7 million fra
its first and second largest clients in fiscal 20E3pectively. The Specialty Health Care’s opegaihcome for the fifty-two week period
ended December 28, 2013 was $1.0 million as cordgarg1.1 million for the comparable prior yearipdr The decrease in operating
income was due primarily to an increase in costenfices as a percentage of revenues. Costwtasgias a percentage of revenues incre
to 69.5% from 68.2% for the comparable prior yeaniqul. The increase was primarily due to a tigimgrof the labor supply in the Specialty
Health Care’s core markets and the segment’s gpbigraxpansion efforts which have garnered lowesgprofit margins than the segment
has typically achieved in its primary geographigioa.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table summarizes the major captionsifthe Company’s Consolidated Statements of ChshsF
(% in thousands):

Fiscal Years Ende

December 28, December 29,
2013 2012
Cash provided by (used ir
Operating activitie! ($3,799) $3,56¢
Investing activities ($1,329) ($1,849
Financing activitie: $29( ($15,999

Operating Activities

Operating activities used $3.8 million of cashtfue fifty-two week period ended December 28, 2013 as compagwviding $3.6 million ir
the comparable prior year period. The major corepteof the cash used in and provided by operatitigities in the fifty-two week period
ended December 28, 2013 and the comparable promgiod are as follows: net income and changesdounts receivable, the net of
transit accounts payable and transit accountsvalokei, accounts payable and accrued expenses angtd@ayroll and related costs.

Net income for the fift-two week period ended December 28, 2013 was $2l@mas compared to $3.2 million for the compaeaptior yea
period. An increase in accounts receivables irfiftyetwo week period ended December 28, 2013 (&E2I5 million as compared to $4.7
million in the comparable prior year period. Then@any primarily attributes the increase in accouvetgivables for the fifty-two week
period ended December 28, 2013 to an increasevémues as compared to levels in the second héHaafl 2012. Additionally, the Compa
has experienced an increase in its accounts rdgeivalative to revenue levels. The Company bebehat the ratio of accounts receivables
to revenues will improve over the next several tprar

The Company’s transit accounts payable generatbgeds the Company’s transit accounts receivabteglimolute amounts and differences
fluctuate significantly from quarter to quartertire normal course of business. The net of excassit accounts payable over transit acco
receivable decreased from $2.0 million as of Deaam28, 2012 to a marginal net excess of transiaas receivable in excess of transit
accounts payable as of December 28, 2013, thergby 2.0 million in cash for the fifty-two weekned ended December 28, 2013. The
net of excess transit accounts payable over trans@unts receivable increased from zero as ofibeee31, 2011 to $2.0 million as of
December 29, 2012, thereby providing $2.0 milliorcash for the fifty-two week period ended Decenft$er2012.

An increase in accounts payable and accrued exp@nseided $3.7 million as compared to $0.4 millfonthe comparable prior year peric
The Company generally attributes changes in acequatable and accrued expenses to general timipgyofhients to vendors in the normal
course of business. Additionally, the Company aedr$1.4 million of expenses associated with tleyprontest that preceded its December
5, 2013 annual meeting. An increase in accruedofiaand related costs in the fifty-two week perentded December 28, 2013 provided $4.0
million as compared to $0.4 million in the compaeafrior year period. The primary reason for theréase in cash provided by accrued
payroll and related costs is due to the Companyuatg a cash severance payment of $2.7 millior_émn Kopyt, the Company’s President
and Chief Executive Officer to be made in connectigth his retirement to be effective on Februa8y 2014. Additionally, the Company
experienced higher accrued payroll and relatecsahst to an increase to cost of services.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)
I nvesting Activities

Investing activities used cash of $1.3 million fioe fifty-two week period ended December 28, 204 8@mpared to $1.8 million in the
comparable prior year period. The primary reasorfe decrease was that in the comparable prenr yeriod the Company paid $1.3 milli
in cash for the BGA acquisition and had no sucheexifture in the current year. This was offset byrerease to property and equipment
acquired of $1.4 million for the fiftywo week period ended December 28, 2013 as compaik@l 5 million the comparable prior year peri
The primary reasons for the increase in propertyeuipment acquired are due to investments ilCtrapany’s growing Engineering
segment of $1.1 million and a corporate ADP paysg#item implementation which cost $0.2 millionheTCompany’s Engineering segment
invested $0.3 million in software and licenses3%@illion in computer equipment and $0.5 millionfurniture and leasehold improvements
for expanded facilities. The Company anticipaesancing its financial reporting and accountingtemn platform sometime in 2014 and,
result, it may see a significant rise in expendisuior property and equipment.

Financing Activities

Financing activities provided $0.3 million of cafsin the fifty-two week period ended December 2812@s compared to using $16.0 million
of cash in the comparable prior year period. Thenany used $12.3 million in the comparable priarygeriod by issuing a onteme specia
cash dividend. The primary use of cash of $0.lianiffor the fifty-two week period ended Decemb&; 2013 was for the Company’s share
repurchase program as compared to $4.7 milliohercomparable prior year period. The Company geeercash of $0.4 million from the
sale of stock through its employee stock purchéese gnd stock option plans for the fifty-two weedripd ended December 28, 2013 and $0.9
million for the comparable prior year period.

The Company and its subsidiaries are party to @& dgmeement with Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania,raded and restated effective February
20, 2009, which provides for a $15 million revolgioredit facility and includes a sub-limit of $5Itain for letters of credit (the “Revolving
Credit Facility”). The Revolving Credit Facilityals been amended several times, most recently cenfer 24, 2011 when the maturity date
was extended to August 31, 2016. Borrowings uttteRevolving Credit Facility bear interest at @fi¢wo alternative rates, as selected by
the Company at each incremental borrowing. Thésenatives are: (i) LIBOR (London Interbank OffdrRate), plus applicable margin, or
(ii) Citizens Bank’s prime rate. The Company gtsys unused line fees based on the amount of thel\Reg Credit Facility that is not
drawn. Unused line fees are recorded as intexpsinse.

All borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facilaye collateralized by all of the assets of the Camypand its subsidiaries and a pledge of
the stock of its subsidiaries. The Revolving Cré&dicility also contains various financial and rforancial covenants, such as a covenant that
restricts on the Company'’s ability to borrow in erdio pay dividends. Since the Company did notdweiin order to fund the dividend paid

on December 29, 2012, the Company did not requiyenaiver of any covenant under its Revolving Cré&gicility.

There were no borrowings during the fifty-two weekiods ended December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2& December 28, 2013 and
December 29, 2012, there were letters of credgtanting for $0.8 million. At December 28, 2018 Company had availability for
additional borrowings under the Revolving Creditifiey of $14.2 million.

As of December 28, 2013, $3.3 million of the $9.8iam (on the Consolidated Balance Sheet) of casth cash equivalents was held by
foreign subsidiaries, approximately $3.2 millionGanadian dollars and the balance of approximé&@I¥ million held in U.S. dollars.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)
Dividends

On December 27, 2012, the Company paid to stockinelof record on December 20, 2012 a time special cash dividend of $1.00 per sl
of common stock. Prior to fiscal 2012, the Comphag never paid any dividend on the Common Stddie Company also accrued $1.00
per share on 350,000 unvested restricted stock.uifithe restricted stock units contain a dividequalivalent provision entitling holders to
dividends paid between the restricted stock grate dnd ultimate share distribution date. Thewsttdividend will be paid when the
restricted stock units vest in November 2015, wtilédends on forfeited restricted stock units aiéo be forfeited.

Approximately 14.5% of the one-time special cashdgind was treated as an ordinary taxable dividemtthe approximate balance of 85.5%
was treated as a return of capital to the extethiefecipient’s tax basis, or a capital gain thées.

The Company’s Board of Directors believes thatingtg earnings to finance the development and esiparof the Company’s business is in
the best interest of RCM and its shareholders agpdwture payment of dividends will depend uponpagother things, the Company’s
earnings, financial condition, capital requiremetdsel of indebtedness, contractual restricti@mg] other factors that the Board of Directors
deems relevant. The Revolving Credit Facility dssussed in Item 7 hereof) prohibits the payméminy dividends or distributions on
account of the Company’s capital stock withoutghier consent of the majority of the Compasjénders. Such consent was received pr|
the December 27, 2012 distribution.

Commitments

The Company anticipates that its primary uses pitakin future periods will be for working capitalirposes. Funding for any long-term and
short-term capital requirements as well as futerasitions will be derived from one or more of fRevolving Credit Facility (or a
replacement thereof), funds generated through Gpesaor future financing transactions. The Conypiarsubject to legal proceedings and
claims that arise from time to time in the ordinaourse of its business, which may or may not e by insurance. Were an unfavorable
final outcome to occur, there exists the possibdita material adverse impact on our financialifpas, liquidity, and the results of operatio

The Company’s business strategy is to achieve grbwath internally through operations and externtdhpugh strategic acquisitions. The
Company from time to time engages in discussioitls potential acquisition candidates. The Comparsyadtuired numerous companies
throughout its history and those acquisitions hgemerally included significant future contingenhsleration. As the size of the Company
and its financial resources increase however, aitgpn opportunities requiring significant commitme of capital may arise. In order to
pursue such opportunities, the Company may be redjtn incur debt or issue potentially dilutive weties in the future. No assurance cai
given as to the Company'’s future acquisition angb@sion opportunities or how such opportunities el financed.

The Company does not currently have material comanrits for capital expenditures. However, the Camfsnticipates a comprehensive
review of its financial reporting and accountingt®m platform in the fiscal year ending Januar@,5. The Company may make change
its financial reporting and accounting system, magdrom a complete upgrade or switch to anothatfpim to enhancements to its current
system. The Company estimates the costs may femge$0.5 million to $2.0 million. The Company’arcent commitments consist
primarily of lease obligations for office spaceheTCompany believes that its capital resourcesu#ficient to meet its present obligations
those to be incurred in the normal course of bissiffier at least the next 12 months.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)
Commitments (Continued)
The Company leases office facilities and variousiggent under non-cancelable leases expiring @wsudates through June 2020. Certain

leases are subject to escalation clauses basedchpages in various factors. The minimum futuneuah operating lease commitments for
leases with non-cancelable terms, exclusive of anknoperating escalation charges, are as followth@usands):

Fiscal Years Amouni
2014 $2,90¢
2015 2,601
2016 1,86:
2017 1,50¢
2018 1,30z
Thereaftel 50€
Total $10,68"

As of December 28, 2013, the Company had one aatigaisition agreement. Effective July 1, 2012@wenpany acquired certain assets of
BGA as more fully described in Footnote 6 in then€alidated Financial Statements. The Company agtisfuture contingent payments as
follows (in thousands):

Period Endinc

December 28, 201 $31:
January 3, 201 21C
January 2, 201 222
December 31, 201 262
Estimated Future Contingent Payme $1,00¢

Actual future contingent payments may materialffedifrom the estimates above. Future contingayhpents to be made to BGA are cap
at a maximum of $3.0 million cumulatively.

The Company does not believe that future Earnautetpaid, if any, are likely to be material.
Significant employment agreements are as follows:

Executive Severance Agreements with Kevin Milled &occo Campanelli

The Company is a party to Executive Severance Ageads (the “Executive Severance Agreements”) withd® Campanelli, the Company’s
President and Chief Executive Officer as of Febr&, 2014, and Kevin Miller, the Company’s Chi@idncial Officer, which set forth the
terms and conditions of certain payments to be nbgdbe Company to each executive in the eventewdmployed by the Company, such
executive experiences (a) a termination of employmerelated to a “Change in Control” (as defineerein) or (b) there occurs a Change in
Control and either (i) the executive’'s employmenteirminated for a reason related to the Chan@mirtrol or (ii) the executive remains
continuously employed with the Company for a spediperiod of time following the Change in Contficé., twelve months for Mr.
Campanelli and three months for Mr. Miller).
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)
Commitments (Continued)

Under the terms of the Executive Severance Agre@nireither (a) the executive is involuntarilyrténated by the Company for any reason
other than “Cause” (as defined therein), “Disayilias defined therein) or death, or (b) the exmeutesigns for “Good Reason” (as defined
therein), and, in each case, the termination isarfdermination Related to a Change in Control”daefined below), the executive will receive
the following severance payments: (i) an amoungaktiul.5 times the sum of (a) the executive’s ahbase salary as in effect immediately
prior to the termination date (before taking inb@@unt any reduction that constitutes Good Reaéémnual Base Salary”) and (b) the
highest annual bonus paid to the executive in ditlgeothree fiscal years immediately precedingekecutive’s termination date (“Bonusty
be paid in installments over the twelve month pfamlowing the executive’s termination date; aififor a period of eighteen months
following the executive’s termination date, a mdpnthayment equal to the monthly COBRA premium tthat executive is required to pay to
continue medical, vision, and dental coveragehforself and, where applicable, his spouse andbdigiependents.

Notwithstanding the above, if the executive hasranination as described above and can reasonalgrigrate that such termination wol
constitute a Termination Related to a Change int©brand a Change in Control occurs within 120gdfplowing the executiva' terminatiot
date, the executive will be entitled to receive pagments set forth below for a Termination Reldted Change in Control, less any amounts
already paid to the executive, upon consummatich@fChange in Control.

Under the terms of the Executive Severance Agresniém Change in Control occurs and (a) the etreeexperiences a Termination
Related to a Change in Control on account of (iln&oluntary termination by the Company for anys@a other than Cause, death, or
Disability, (ii) an involuntary termination by tt@ompany within a specified period of time followiagChange in Control (i.e., twelve months
for Mr. Campanelli and three months for Mr. Millem account of Disability or death, or (iii) a rg@sation by the executive with Good
Reason; or (b) a resignation by the executive, wittvithout Good Reason, which results in a tertmadate that is the last day of the
specified period (i.e., twelve months for Mr. Camelli and three months for Mr. Miller) following@hange in Control, then the executive
will receive the following severance payments:d1)mp sum payment equal to two times the sumeettecutive’s (a) Annual Base Salary
and (b) Bonus; and (2) a lump sum payment equaleaty-four multiplied by the monthly COBRA premiunst, as in effect immediately
prior to the executive’s termination date, for thecutive to continue medical, dental and visiovecage, as applicable, in such Company
plans for himself and, if applicable, his spousé aligible dependents.

The Executive Severance Agreements provide thheiExecutive remains continuously employed fquecied period of time following a
Change in Control (i.e., twelve months for Mr. Camelli and three months for Mr. Miller) and is exmygd by the Company on the last day
of such specified period, the executive will reeeév/lump sum payment equal to two times the sutheoéxecutive’s (a) Annual Base Salary
and (b) Bonus (the “Change in Control Paymentf)thé executive receives the Change in Control Ranthe executive will not be eligible
to receive any severance payments under his ExecBéiverance Agreement.

As of December 28, 2013, the Company also had wsgonployment arrangements with Mr. Kopyt. Mr. Kowill retire effective on
February 28, 2014 and his severance arrangemelhtsewn accordance with the Separation Agreemadt@eneral Release between him and
the Company entered into as of January 22, 2014.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

None.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)
Impact of Inflation

Consulting, staffing, and project services are gahepriced based on markps on prevailing rates of pay, and as a resulablieto generall
maintain their relationship to direct labor cosBermanent placement services are priced as adaraftsalary levels of the job candidates.

The Company’s business is labor intensive; theegfibre Company has a high exposure to increasiaighicare benefit costs. The Company
attempts to compensate for these escalating aogtsbusiness cost models and customer pricingadsging along some of these increased
healthcare benefit costs to its customers and grapty however, the Company has not been able soopeall increases. The Company is
continuing to review its options to further conttieése costs, which the Company does not believespresentative of general inflationary
trends. Otherwise, inflation has not been a megnidactor in the Company’s operations.

New Accounting Standards

There have been no recent accounting pronouncermeaksanges in accounting pronouncements durin§idbal year ended December 28,
2013, as compared to the recent accounting promougists described in the Company’s Annual RepoRarm 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 29, 2012, that are of materialfgignce, or have potential material significancetite Company.

Other accounting standards that have been issysposed by the FASB and SEC and/or other stasdsatting bodies that do not require
adoption until a future date are not expected t@®l@mmaterial impact on the consolidated finanstalements upon adoption.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

The Company’s exposure to market risk for changesterest rates relates primarily to the Companwgstment portfolio and debt
instruments, which primarily consist of its RevalgiCredit Facility. The Company does not have dayvative financial instruments in its
portfolio. The Company places its investmentsistriuments that meet high credit quality standafidse Company is adverse to principal
loss and ensures the safety and preservation iofvigsted funds by limiting default risk, marketkiand reinvestment risk. As of December
28, 2013, the Company’s investments consisted sif aad money market funds. The Company does edhterest rate derivative
instruments to manage its exposure to interestcfaages. Presently the impact of a 10% (apprd=i;80 basis points) increase in interest
rates on its variable debt (using an incrementaidvgng rate) would have a relatively nominal impan the Company’s results of
operations. The Company does not expect any rahtess with respect to its investment portfolio.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements, together with the repbthe Company’s Independent Registered Public Anting Firm, begins on page F-1.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company’s management, under the supervisiomwéhdhe participation of the Company’s Chief Entiee Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the Comfsmdigclosure controls and procedures (as defindRuile 13a-15(e) and 18kb(e) under th
Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covesethis report. Based upon that evaluation, theeClkecutive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that those disclosure controls procedures as of the end of the period coveratibyeport were effective to provide
reasonable assurance that information require@ widrlosed by the Company in the reports tha@es br submits under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported vifthitime periods specified in the SEC’s rules famohs and is accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, incluidsngrincipal executive and principal financiafioérs, or persons performing similar
functions, as appropriate, to allow timely decisioegarding required disclosure.

A controls system, no matter how well designed @mefated, cannot provide absolute assurance thatjectives of the controls system are
met, and no evaluation of controls can provide kite@ssurance that all control issues and inssot#aud, if any, within a company have
been detected.

Managemens Report on Internal Control over Financial Repaorti

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting for the company. Internal
control over financial reporting is a process desdjto provide reasonable assurance regardin@liability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples. Our system of internal
control over financial reporting includes thoseigiels and procedures that (i) pertain to the maiee of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions dispositions of the assets of the company; (iiyjute reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparatibnasfcial statements in accordance with generalbepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are baade only in accordance with authorizations of ngangent and directors of the compa
and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regardiaggmtion or timely detection of unauthorized acigjois, use or disposition of the compasy’
assets that could have a material effect on tlenéial statements.

Management performed an assessment of the effaeigeof our internal control over financial repagtas of December 28, 2013 based upon
criteria in Internal Control-Integrated Framewoskued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatibtise Treadway Commission
(“COSO0"). Based on this assessment, managemenhdetd that the company’s internal control oveafinial reporting was effective as of
December 28, 2013, based on the criteria in Int&oatrol-Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

There have been no changes in the Company’s iiteon&rol over financial reporting that occurredidg the Company’s most recent fiscal
guarter and that have materially affected, or aesonably likely to materially affect, the Companiyiternal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information required by Item 10 shall be in@dddn the 2014 Proxy Statement and is incorporaggdin by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 shall be in@ddn the 2014 Proxy Statement and is incorporagzdin by reference.

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Except as set forth below, the information requipgdtem 12 shall be included in the 2014 Proxyte&Steent and is incorporated herein by
reference.

The table below presents certain information camiogrsecurities issuable in connection with eqadmpensation plans that have been
approved by the Company’s shareholders and tha hawvbeen approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Number of securities remaining
available for issuance under
Number of securities to be issue Weighted-average exercise price equity compensation plans,
upon exercise of outstanding of outstanding options, warrants excluding securities reflected in
Plan category options, warrants and rights and rights column (a)

@) (b) (©
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holde 276,900 $5.47 34,100
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holde

Total 276,900 $5.47 34,100

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 shall be in@ddn the 2014 Proxy Statement and is incorporaédin by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 shall be in@dddn the 2014 Proxy Statement and is incorporaggdin by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(& 1.and 2. Financial Statement Schedule-- See”Index to Financial Statements and Schec¢’ on F-1.

3. See Item (b) below

(b)  Exhibits

3)@)

(3)(b)

3)(©)

(3)(d)

(4) (@)

(10)(b)

*(10)(c)

*(10)(d)

*(10)(e)

*(10)(H)

(10)(9)

Articles of Incorporation, as amendedprporated by reference to Exhibit 3(a) to thgiReant's Annual Report on
Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 1¢

Certificate of Amendment of Articles lofcorporation; incorporated by reference to Ext¥bto the Registrant’'s Proxy
Statement, dated February 6, 1996, filed with theusities and Exchange Commission on January Z8..

Certificate of Amendment of Articles lofcorporation; incorporated by reference to Extitbto the Registrant’s Proxy
Statement, dated February 6, 1996, filed with theuBities and Exchange Commission on January Z8..

Amended and Restated Bylaws; incoratdity reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registra@tgsrent Report on Form 8-
K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiardanuary 23, 2014 (tI*January 2014-K”)

Registration Rights Agreement, dateddfldl 1, 1996, by and between RCM Technologies,dnd.the former
shareholders of The Consortium; incorporated bgregfce to Exhibit (c)(2) to the Registrant’s Cutri@aport on Form
8-K dated March 19, 1996, filed with the Securitiesl &xchange Commission on March 20, 1¢

RCM Technologies, Inc. 1994 Non-emgleirector Stock Option Plan; incorporated by nerfee to the appendix to
the Registrant’s Proxy Statement, dated March 834 1filed with the Securities and Exchange Comimissn March
28, 1994

RCM Technologies, Inc. 1996 Executive &t@ption Plan, dated August 15, 1996; incorpordigdeference to
Exhibit 10(]) to the Registrant’s Annual Report®orm 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31,6 9®ed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on January9®, (the*1996 1(-K").

RCM Technologies, Inc. 2000 Employee Stivdentive Plan, dated January 6, 2000; incorpdrhyereference to
Exhibit A to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement, dai#arch 3, 2000, filed with the Securities and Exfpe
Commission on February 28, 20(

Second Amended and Restated Terminatioefiée Agreement, dated March 18, 1997, betweeRggistrant and
Leon Kopyt; incorporated by reference to Exhibifd)ao the Registrant’s Registration Statement omFS-1 (SEC
File No. 33:-23753), filed with the Securities and Exchange Cdéssimn on March 21, 199

Amended and Restated Employment Agreentatied November 30, 1996, between the Registnatetitéc Design,
Inc. and Leon Kopyt; incorporated by reference xbigit 10(g) to the 1996 -K.

Severance Agreement, dated June 102, Xi&tween RCM Technologies, Inc. and Leon Koioygiprporated by

reference to Exhibit 10a to the Registrant’s Qubrtieeport on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter eshdane 30, 2002,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioagust 5, 2002 (th* Second Quarter 2002 -Q").
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (CONTINU ED)

(b)  Exhibits (Continued)

*(10)(h)

*(10)(i)

*(10)()

*(10)(k)

*(20)(1)

(10)(n)

(10)(0)

(10)(p)

(10)(a)

*(10)(n)

*(10)(s)

Exhibit A to Severance Agreement GenerleRse; incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10théoSecond Quarter
2002 1(-Q.

Amendment No. 1, dated December 12, 20®Hhe Amended and Restated Employment Agreemeterea into on
November 30, 1996, between Leon Kopyt and RCM Telduies, Inc.; incorporated by reference to Exhiffitl to
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K datedddnber 12, 2007, filed with the Securities andnarge
Commission on December 12, 2007 (“December 2007-K").

Amendment No. 1, dated December 12, 20®%he Second Amended and Restated TerminationflieAgreement,
made March 18, 1997, between Leon Kopyt and RCMilielogies, Inc.; incorporated by reference to Eittib.2 tc
the December 2007-K.

Amendment No. 1, dated December 12, 2@D%he Severance Agreement, entered into on Jun20D2, between
Leon Kopyt and RCM Technologies, Inc.; incorporatgdeference to Exhibit 10.3 to the December 28-K.

The RCM Technologies, Inc. 2007 OmnibusiBgCompensation Plan; incorporated by referenc&rtnex A to the
Registrant’s Proxy Statement, dated April 20, 2G0&d with the Securities and Exchange Commissiorpril 19,
2007.

Second Amended and Restated Loan aodriBy Agreement dated as of February 19, 200@yden RCM
Technologies, Inc. and all of its SubsidiariesjZeits Bank of Pennsylvania as Administrative Agerd Arranger
and the Financial Institutions Named therein asdees; incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.th®Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 19, 262 with the Securities and Exchange Commission
February 25, 200¢

Amendment, dated as of July 21, 2@d Eecond Amended and Restated Loan and SecurigeAtent dated as of
February 19, 2009, between RCM Technologies, Ind.al of its Subsidiaries, Citizens Bank of Perwagia as
Administrative Agent and Arranger and the Finantiatitutions Named therein as Lenders. (Fileckinvih)

Second Amendment, dated as of OctdheR011, to Second Amended and Restated Loanenudify Agreement
dated as of February 19, 2009, between RCM Techredplnc. and all of its Subsidiaries, CitizensBaf
Pennsylvania as Administrative Agent and Arranget the Financial Institutions Named therein as lezsd (Filed
herewith)

Third Amendment, dated as of Decenii3r2011, to Second Amended and Restated Loanendify Agreement
dated as of February 19, 2009, between RCM Techiedplnc. and all of its Subsidiaries, CitizensBaf
Pennsylvania as Administrative Agent and Arrangnet the Financial Institutions Named therein as lezad
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to thgiReant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Decanmil3e 2011,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiodanuary 3, 201:

Option Grant Agreement, dated April 21120to Richard D. Machon (filed as an exhibit te fRegistrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities anccEange Commission on April 23, 2010, and incorpatdterein
by reference)

Option Grant Agreement, dated April 211@0to S. Gary Snodgrass (filed as an exhibit éoRkgistrant’s Current

Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities anccEange Commission on April 23, 2010, and incorpatdterein
by reference)
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ITEM 15.

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (CONTINU ED)

(b)  Exhibits (Continued)

*10(t)

*10(u)

*10(v)

*10(w)

(21)
(23.1)

(31.1)

(31.2)

(32.1)

(32.2)

Executive Severance Agreement between RChA@ogies, Inc. and Rocco Campanelli dated Dece2ibe2012;
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to thgiBteant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Decan®ie 2012,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioiecember 28, 201

Executive Severance Agreement between RCohii@ogies, Inc. and Kevin Miller dated December 2712;
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to thgiReant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Decan2e 2012,
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiDecember 28, 201

Settlement Agreement, dated January 23, Petvteen RCM Technologies, Inc. and the stockheldéthe
Company named therein; incorporated by referenéetobit 99.1 to the January 201-K.

Separation Agreement, dated January 23,,2isté&een RCM Technologies, Inc. and Leon Kopytpiporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the January 20-K.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant. (Filed herew
Consent of EisnerAmper LLP. (Filed herewi

Certifications of Chief Executive OfficRequired by Rule 13a-14(a) of the SecuritieshBrge Act of 1934, as
amended. (Filed herewit

Certifications of Chief Financial OfficRequired by Rule 13a-14(a) of the SecuritieshBrge Act of 1934, as
amended. (Filed herewit

Certifications of Chief Executive OfficRequired by Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securitiesharnge Act of 1934, as
amended. (This exhibit shall not be deemed “file"purposes of Section 18 of the Securities ErgeaAct of
1934, as amended, or otherwise subject to thditiabf that section. Further, this exhibit shatit be deemed to be
incorporated by reference into any filing under Seeurities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Séesifitxchange
Act of 1934, as amended.) (Filed herew

Certifications of Chief Financial OfficRequired by Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securitiesharge Act of 1934, as
amended. (This exhibit shall not be deemed “fil&d"purposes of Section 18 of the Securities ERgleaAct of
1934, as amended, or otherwise subject to thditiabf that section. Further, this exhibit shatit be deemed to be
incorporated by reference into any filing under 8ezurities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Séesifiixchange
Act of 1934, as amended.) (Filed herew
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (CONTINU ED)

(b)  Exhibits (Continued)

**101.INS

*101.SCH
**101.CAL
**101.LAB
*101.PRE

**101.DEF

XBRL Instance Document (Furnished herew

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (Furnidier@with)

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docun@urnished herewitt
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documentr(fshed herewith
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent® (Furnished herewit

XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Document (Furréshherewith

*Constitutes a management contract or compensal@myop arrangemen

** XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) imfation is furnished and not filed or a part of giseration statement or
prospectus for purposes of sections 11 or 12 oS#wmirities Act of 1933, is deemed not filed forgmses of section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and otherwisetsnbject to liability under these sectio

43




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regiisthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

RCM Technologies, Inc.

Date: February 27, 201 By:/s/ Leon Kopy!
Leon Kopyt
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer anceBtor

Date: February 27, 201 By:/s/ Kevin D. Miller
Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre!

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Date: February 27, 201 By :/s/ Leon Kopy!
Leon Kopyt
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officatir{€ipal Executive
Officer) and Directo

Date: February 27, 201 By:/s/ Kevin D. Miller
Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre{&rincipal Financial
and Accounting Officer

Date: February 27, 201 By:/s/ Roger H. Balloi
Roger H. Ballou
Director

Date: February 27, 201 By:/s/ Maier O. Feir
Maier O. Fein
Director

Date: February 27, 201 By:/s/ Richard D. Macho
Richard D. Machon
Director

Date: February 27, 201 By:/s/ S. Gary Snodara:
S. Gary Snodgras:
Director

Date: February 27, 201 By:/s/ Bradley S. Viz
Bradley S. Vizi
Director
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012

(Dollars in thousands, except share and per shaneunts, unless otherwise indicat

December 2¢€

December 2¢

2013 2012
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $9,31° $14,12:
Accounts receivable, n 55,72¢ 43,70¢
Transit accounts receivak 3,95: 10,01(
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 1,87¢ 1,96¢
Deferred income tax assets, dome 1,83: 541
Total current asse 72,70 70,34¢
Property and equipment, r 2,291 1,88(
Other assets
Deposits 15¢ 244
Goodwill 9,54t 9,54t
Intangible assets, n 21€ 33z
Deferred income tax assets, dome 1,60¢ 2,20z
Total other asse 11,52¢ 12,32:
Total asset $86,52- $84,54¢
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expel $9,67: $6,33¢
Transit accounts payak 3,90¢ 11,98°
Accrued payroll and related co: 10,10¢ 6,241
Income taxes payab 404 11¢
Deferred income tax liability, foreig 132 73
Contingent consideratic 528 30¢
Total current liabilities 24,73¢ 25,06:
Contingent consideratic 407 71<
Total liabilities 25,14¢ 25,77t
Stockholder equity:
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value; 5,000,000 shartsrized
no shares issued or outstand - -
Common stock, $0.05 par value; 40,000,000 shatb®azed;
13,892,265 shares issued and 12,418,959 shar¢aralits) ai
December 28, 2013 and 13,756,589 shares issueta2@8,733 shares outstanding at
December 29, 201 69t 68¢
Additional paic-in capital 110,60! 109,39(
Accumulated other comprehensive incc 81t 1,37(
Accumulated defici (43,23) (45,259
Treasury stock common (1,473,306 shares at Dece@013 ant
1,457,856 shares at December 29, 2012) al (7,500 (7,417
Stockholder equity 61,37¢ 58,77:
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $86,52: $84,54¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Fiscal Years Ended December 28, 2013 and Decemb&; 2012
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amountiessotherwise indicater

December 28,

December 29,

2013 2012

Revenue! $170,77: $145,81
Cost of service 126,41 106,10:.
Gross profit 44,36 39,71¢
Operating costs and expen:

Selling, general and administrati 35,51« 33,16¢

Severance and other char 5,181 -

Depreciation and amortizatic 1,111 1,321

Operating costs and expen: 41,80¢ 34,48’
Operating incom 2,55k 5,22¢
Other income (expens

Interest expense and other, (55) (40

Change in contingent considerati 92 13t

Loss (gain) on foreign currency transacti (5) 7

Other income 32 10z
Income before income tax 2,58 5,33(
Income tax expens 597 2,10:
Net income $1,99( $3,22’
Basic and diluted net income per sh $0.1¢ $0.2¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Fiscal Years Ended December 28, 2013 and Decem[2&;, 2012
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per sk@meunts, unless otherwise indicat

December 28 December 2¢
2013 2012
Net income $1,99( $3,22°
Foreign currency translation adjustm (55E) 64
Comprehensive incon $1,43¢ $3,29:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Fiscal Years Ended December 28, 2013 and Decemb&; 2012
(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, snéiserwise indicatec

Common Stocl

Accumulatec

Treasury Stocl

Additional
Issuec Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Shares Amount Total

Balance, December 31, 201 13,335,00 $66€ $108,20: $1,30¢ ($35,80) 591,78t ($2,719) $71,66:
Issuance of stock und

employee stock purchase p 29,20t 2 12€ - - - 12€
Translation adjustmel - - - 64 - - - 64
Issuance of stock upon exercise

stock option: 392,37t 20 892 - - - - 912
Stock based compensation expe - - 16¢ - - - - 16¢
Common stock repurcha - - - - - 866,07( (4,709 (4,709
Cash dividend pai - - - - (12,33%) - - (12,33%)
Dividends declared on unvest

restricted stock unit - - - - (350) - - (350C)
Net income - - - - 3,227 - - 3,227
Balance, December 29, 201 13,756,58 $68¢ $109,39( $1,37( ($45,259) 1,457,85! ($7,417) $58,77:
Issuance of stock und

employee stock purchase p 58,17¢ 3 25€ - - - - 25¢
Translation adjustmel - - - (555) - - - (555)
Issuance of stock upon exercise

stock option: 27,50( 1 118 - - - - 114
Issuance of stock upon vesting

restricted stock awart 50,00( 3 3 - - - - -
Stock based compensation expe - - 84¢ - - - - 84¢
Common stock repurcha - - - - - 15,45( (83) (83)
Dividends forfeited on restricte

stock award - - - - 32 - - 32
Net income - - - - 1,99( - - 1,99(
Balance, December 28, 201 13,892,26 $69E $110,60! $81% ($43,23) 1,473,301 ($7,500) $61,37¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.




RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Years Ended December 28, 2013 and Decembé&, 2012

(Dollars in thousands unless otherwise indical

December 2¢&

December 2¢

2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $1,99( $3,227
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,111 1,321
Change in contingent considerati (92 (135)
Stocl-based compensation expel 84¢ 16¢
Provision for losses on accounts receive (531 117
Deferred income tax expen (6349) 781
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accounts receivabl (12,47 (4,697
Transit accounts receivak 6,07: (6,98))
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 46 16C
Accounts payable and accrued expel 3,67¢ 37C
Transit accounts payak (8,057) 8,95¢
Accrued payroll and related co: 3,951 37€
Income taxes payab 294 (10€)
Total adjustment (5,782) 337
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activ (3,792 3,56¢
Cash flows from investing activitie
Property and equipment acquit (1,40¢) (51))
Decrease (increase) in depo: 84 (45)
Cash paid for acquisitic - (1,297)
Net cash used in investing activiti (1,322 (1,84¢)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Sale of stock for employee stock purchase 25¢ 12¢
Exercise of stock optior 114 912
Common stock repurchas (83 (4,709
Dividends paid to shareholde - (12,335
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 29C (15,999
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and caslatnts 18 (17)
Decrease in cash and cash equival (4,80¢) (14,299
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 14,12% 28,417
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $9,31° $14,12:
Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid for
Interest $6€ $4z
Income taxe: $1,70: $1,93¢
Non-cash investing activitie:
Contingent consideration recorded at date of aitopns $ - $93(
Above market value lease assumed in acquis $ - $46¢
Fixed assets acquired in acquisit $ - $2¢
Non-cash financing activitie:
Dividend declared but unpaid on unvested restristedk units $ - $35(
Dividends forfeitec (%32 $ -
Vesting of restricted stock uni $33¢ $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended December 28, 2013 and Decemb&; 2012
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per sk@meunts, unless otherwise indicat

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

RCM Technologies, Inc. (the “Company” or “RCM")aspremier provider of business and technology ewiatdesigned to enhance and
maximize the operational performance of its custantierough the adaptation and deployment of adwheogineering and information
technology services. Additionally, the Companyviiles specialty health care staffing services thhoits Specialty Health Care Servii
group. RCM’s offices are primarily located in majoetropolitan centers throughout North America.

The consolidated financial statements are comp$éige accounts of the Company and its wholly atveigbsidiaries. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have baamated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers its holdings of highly ligmidney-market instruments and certificates of diégpts be cash equivalents if the
securities mature within 90 days from the dateagjussition. These investments are carried at edsich approximates fair value. The
Company’s cash balances are maintained in accbefdsy major banks and financial institutions.eThajority of these balances
exceed federally insured amounts. At DecembeR@83 and December 29, 2012, $3.3 million and $3liom, respectively, of cash ai
cash equivalents were held in Canadian banks.

Fair Value of Financial I nstruments

The Company’s carrying value of financial instrurisgiconsisting primarily of accounts receivablangit accounts receivable, accounts
payable, transit accounts payable and accrued sgpeapproximates fair value due to their liquidityheir short-term nature. The
Company does not have derivative products in plageanage risks related to foreign currency fluttus for its foreign operations or
for interest rate changes.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company’s accounts receivable are primarilyfduma trade customers. Credit is extended basesl/aluation of customers’
financial condition and, generally, collateral & nequired. Accounts receivable payment termg aad are stated in the financial
statements at amounts due from customers net af@amance for doubtful accounts. Accounts outstagdbnger than the payment ter
are considered past due. The Company determma#idtvance by considering a number of factorduuting the length of time trade
accounts receivable are past due, the Companysopieloss history, the customer’s current abii@ypay its obligation to the Company,
and the condition of the general economy and tHestry as a whole. The Company writes off accoteteivable when they become
uncollectible, and payments subsequently receiveslch receivables previously written off are desdito bad debt expense.

Accrued and Unbilled Accounts Receivable and Work-in-Process
Unbilled receivables primarily represent revenumsied whereby those services are ready to be fifledf the balance sheet ending
date. Work-inprocess primarily represents revenues earned wodéracts which the Company is contractually préetlifrom invoicing

until future dates as project milestones are redlizSee Note 4 for further details.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended December 28, 2013 and Decemb&; 2012
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per sk@meunts, unless otherwise indicat

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
Transit Receivables and Transit Payables

From time to time, the Company’s Engineering segreeters into agreements to provide, among othegsh construction management
and engineering services. Pursuant to these agregntiee Company: a) engages subcontractors tadgreenstruction services; b)
typically earns a fixed percentage of the totajgrbvalue as a management fee and ¢) assumesmership or risks of inventory. In
such situations, the Company acts as an agent timielerovisions of “Overall Considerations of Rdjppgy Revenue Gross as a Principal
versus Net as an Agent” and therefore recognizesntes on a “net basis.” Under the terms of theagents, the Company is not
typically required to pay the subcontractor unftiéathe corresponding payment from the Compangt @ient is received. Upon
invoicing the end client on behalf of the subcoctivathe Company records this amount simultanecassliyoth a “transit account
receivable” and “transit account payable” as the@am (when paid to the Company) is due to and gdliygraid to the subcontractor
within a few days. At any given point in time, tBempany’s transit accounts receivable usually Etipgatransit accounts

payable. However, the transit accounts payablieowdasionally exceed the transit accounts recévaibe to timing differences.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost netoofnalated depreciation and amortization and areedégted on the straiglitte methoc
at rates calculated to provide for retirement aets at the end of their estimated useful livelse Tompany’s ERP software system,
installed in 1999 and upgraded in 2004, is beinyekdated over fifteen years. The CompanyOIP telephone system, the installatio
which was substantially complete at the end of 200Being depreciated over seven years. All otlaedware and software as well as
furniture and office equipment is depreciated dixer years. Leasehold improvements are depreciatedthe shorter of the estimated
life of the asset or the lease term. The Compatigipates that it will enhance its current finaalaieporting and accounting system
platform sometime in fiscal 2014.

Intangible Assets

The Company’s intangible assets have been gendtatmeyh acquisitions. The Company maintains residity for valuing and
determining the useful life of intangible assetd typically engages a third party valuation firmassist them. As a general rule, the
Company amortizes restricted covenants over foarsyand customer relationships over six years. é¥ew circumstances may dictate
other amortization terms as determined by the Campad their third party advisors.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended December 28, 2013 and Decemb&; 2012
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per sk@meunts, unless otherwise indicat

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the premium paid over thevaltie of the net tangible and intangible assetsie®d in business combinations. The
Company is required to assess the carrying valits oéporting units that contain goodwill at leastan annual basis in order to
determine if any impairment in value has occurrédle Company has the option to first assess qgtiaditéactors to determine whether it
is necessary to perform a two-step impairment fastassessment of those qualitative factors oafiication of the goodwill
impairment test requires significant judgment inihg but not limited to the assessment of the lassinits management and general
market conditions, estimation of future cash flowhijch is dependent on internal forecasts, estonaif the long-term rate of growth for
the businesses, the useful life over which cashdlwill occur and determination of weighted averagst of capital. Changes in these
estimates and assumptions could materially affectietermination of fair value and/or conclusiongyoodwill impairment for each
reporting unit. The Company formally assessesthesilitative factors and, if necessary, condustarinual goodwill impairment test as
of the last day of the Company’s fiscal Novembeahegear, or more frequently if indicators of impaént exist. The Company
periodically analyzes whether any such indicatdisypairment exist. A significant amount of judgntés involved in determining if an
indicator of impairment has occurred. Such indicmatoay include a sustained, significant declinshare price and market capitalization,
a decline in expected future cash flows, a sigaiftadverse change in legal factors or in the legsiclimate, unanticipated competition,
a material change in management or its key pers¢@maior slower expected growth rates, among othBree to the thin trading of the
Company stock in the public marketplace and theairthpf the control premium held by a relatively felareholders, the Company does
not consider the market capitalization of the Conyptlae most appropriate measure of fair value aidgall for our reporting units. The
Company looks to earnings/revenue multiples of lsintompanies recently completing acquisitions dnedability of our reporting units
to generate cash flows as better measures ofitheafae of our reporting units. The Company deti@ed there was no impairment
during the fiscal years ended December 28, 2013mueeémber 29, 2012. In both years, the Comparsruiéted that is was only
necessary to assess qualitative factors and thierdio not perform a two-step impairment test.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company accounts for long-lived assets in alzoore with “Accounting for the Impairment or Dispbef Long-Lived

Assets.” Management periodically reviews theyiag amounts of long-lived assets to determine taeturrent events or
circumstances warrant adjustment to such carryinguats. Any impairment is measured by the amcuattthe carrying value of such
assets exceeds their fair value, primarily basedstimated discounted cash flows. Considerableagement judgment is necessary to
estimate the fair value of assets. Assets to §igoded of are carried at the lower of their finahsiatement carrying amount or fair val
less cost to sell.

Software
In accordance with “Accounting for Costs of Compueftware Developed or Obtained for Internal Useftain costs related to the
development or purchase of internal-use softwagecapitalized and amortized over the estimatedulif of the software. During the

fiscal years ended December 28, 2013 and Decensh@022, the Company capitalized approximately $d®$101, respectively, for
software costs. At December 28, 2013 the net balafter accumulated depreciation for all softwarsts capitalized was $505.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
Income Taxes

The Company makes judgments and interpretatioresdbas enacted tax laws, published tax guidancegtisas estimates of future
earnings. These judgments and interpretationstatie provision for income taxes, deferred taxetssand liabilities and the valuation
allowance. We evaluated the deferred tax assetsletermined on the basis of objective factorstiainet assets will be realized
through future years’ taxable income. In the evbat actual results differ from these estimatesassessments, additional valuation
allowances may be required.

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbe’Accounting for Income Taxesithich requires an asset and liability apprc
of accounting for income taxes. “Accounting focdme Taxestequires assessment of the likelihood of realiiagefits associated wi
deferred tax assets for purposes of determiningheine valuation allowance is needed for such dedeiax assets. The Company an
wholly owned U.S. subsidiaries file a consolidatederal income tax return. The Company also féesreturns in Canada and Ireland.

The Company also follows the provisions of “Accangtfor Uncertainty in Income Taxes” which presesta model for the recognition
and measurement of a tax position taken or expeotbd taken in a tax return, and provides guidamcderecognition, classification,
interest and penalties, disclosure and transitiime Company’s policy is to record interest andgtignif any, as interest expense.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenues from several ssurthe Company’'s Engineering Services and Infaom& echnology Services
segments perform consulting and project solutiemgices. All of the Company’s segments perfornff stagmentation services and
derive revenue from permanent placement fees. mdjerity of the Company’s revenues are invoicedhdime and materials basis.

Project Services
The Company recognizes revenues in accordance'Rébhenue Recognition” which clarifies applicatiohld S. generally accepted

accounting principles to revenue transactions jelet@ervices are generally provided on a cost;fixsd-fee or time-and-material

basis. Typically, a customer will outsource a ti$e project or activity and the Company assumgsamesibility for the performance of
such project or activity. The Company recognizeg&nues and associated costs on a gross basiviassare provided to the customer
and costs are incurred using its employees. Thepaay, from time to time, enters into contractauiggg the completion of specific
deliverables. The Company may recognize revenngkese deliverables at the time the client accapdsapproves the deliverables. In
instances where project services are providedfored-price basis and the contract will extend beya 12-month period, revenue is
recorded in accordance with the terms of each aohtrin some instances, revenue is billed atithe tertain milestones are reached, as
defined in the contract. Revenues under thesageraents are recognized as the costs on thesacisndire incurred. Amounts invoic
in excess of revenues recognized are recordedfaseatkrevenue, included in accounts payable andiad expenses on the
accompanying balance sheets. In other instaneesnue is billed and recorded based upon contiaetigs per hour (i.e., percentage of
completion). In addition, some contracts contaiarfBrmance Fees” (bonuses) for completing a contnader budget. Performance
Fees, if any, are recorded when earned. Someamtatlso limit revenues and billings to specifieakimum amounts. Provision for
contract losses, if any, are made in the perioth fegses are determined. For contracts where ihardeliverable, the work is not
complete on a specific deliverable and the revénuet recognized, the costs are deferred. Theceged costs are expensed when the
related revenue is recognized.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
Revenue Recognition (Continued)
See description of revenue recognition policy fangtruction management and engineering servicegahdtransit receivables and
transit payables.” Such revenues recognized wgpeoaimately 18.0% of total revenues for the yeatesl December 28, 2013 as

compared to 10.5% for the prior year.

Consulting and Staffing Services

Revenues derived from consulting and staffing sewviare recorded on a gross basis as servicesrdwenped and associated costs have
been incurred using employees of the Company. elkesvices are typically billed on a time and matdrasis.

In certain cases, the Company may utilize otherpaomes and their employees to fulfill customer fegquents. In these cases, the
Company receives an administrative fee for arranépn, billing for, and collecting the billings ikd to these companies. The customer
is typically responsible for assessing the workhese companies who have responsibility for actéptaof their personnel to the
customer. Under these circumstances, the Compagytsted revenues are net of associated cosée(@Hly recognizing the net
administrative fee only).

Transit Receivables and Transit Payables

From time to time, the Company’s Engineering segreeters into agreements to provide, among othegsh construction management
and engineering services. In certain circumstgribesCompany may acquire equipment as a purchagiegt for the client for a fee.
Pursuant to these agreements, the Company maggay)e subcontractors to provide construction cgragkrvices or contracts with
manufacturers on behalf of the Company’s clientsrazure equipment or fixtures; b) typically eaanfixed percentage of the total
project value or a negotiated marg-on subcontractor or procurement charges as anf¢e) assumes no ownership or risks of inven
In such situations, the Company acts as an ageigrhe provisions of “Overall Considerations opBeing Revenue Gross as a
Principal versus Net as an Agent” and thereforegaizing revenue on a “net-basis.” The Compangnédsrevenue on a “net” basis on
relevant engineering and construction managemejeqis, which require subcontractor/procurementscostransit costs. In those
situations, the Company charges the client a naigatifee, which is reported as net revenue wheredarSimilarly, the Company’s
Information Technology segment acts as an agers foajor staffing client. The Company managesthffing requirements for a
division of the client and numerous staffing ageaqrovide staff and the Company collects a seffeiee During the fifty-two week
period ended December 28, 2013, total gross bdlingcluding both transit cost billings and the @amy’s earned fees, was $67.3
million, for which the Company recognized $30.7lioil of its net fee as revenue. During the fiftystweek period ended December 29,
2012, total gross billings, including both trarsost billings and the Company’s earned fees, wdsdhaillion, for which the Company
recognized $15.3 million of its net fee as revenue.

Under the terms of the agreements, the Companypiisatly not required to pay the subcontractor uriteEngineering contracts or
staffing agencies under the Information Technologgtract until after the corresponding payment ftbenCompany’s client is
received. Upon invoicing the end client on beloélthe subcontractor or staffing agency the Compangrds this amount simultaneot
as both a “transit account receivable” and “traasitount payable” as the amount when paid to thapgany is due to and generally paid
to the subcontractor within a few days. The Comypgpically does not pay a given transit accountgtde until the related transit
account receivable is collected. The Companyissitaaccounts payable usually exceeds the Compamayisit accounts receivable but
absolute amounts and spreads fluctuate significéirtin quarter to quarter in the normal courseusdibess. The transit accounts
receivable was $4.0 million and related transibacds payable was $3.9 million, a net receivabl$01 million, as of December 28,
2013. The transit accounts receivable was $10l®mand related transit accounts payable was®ftlliion, a net payable of $2.0
million, as of December 29, 2012.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Permanent Placement Services

The Company earns permanent placement fees fromdprg permanent placement services. Fees foephants are recognized at the
time the candidate commences employment. The Coyngpaarantees its permanent placements on a pidoasss for 90 days. In the
event a candidate is not retained for the 90-daypg@ethe Company will provide a suitable replacatreandidate. In the event a
replacement candidate cannot be located, the Compifirprovide a prorated refund to the client. Alowance for refunds, based upon
the Company’s historical experience, is recordeithénfinancial statements. Revenues are recomedgross basis. Such revenues are
not significant for the years ended December 2&32dhd December 29, 2012.

Concentration

During the fiscal year ended December 28, 2013a@mPower Group (the Company primarily servicesatia Power Generation as a
subcontractor through Black and McDonald Limiteddl &nited Technologies Corporation accounted fo8%8and 12.6% of the
Company’s revenues, respectively, and as of Dece®e2013 represented 21.8% and 5.3% of the Cog'gancounts receivable, net.
No other customer accounted for 10% or more ofdbmpany’s revenues. As of December 28, 2013, Nevk Power Authority total
accounts receivable balance (including transit actoreceivable of $2.2 million) was $10.2 million16.6% of the total of accounts
receivable, net and transit accounts receivable otRer customer accounted for 10% or more of thea@any’s accounts receivable, net.
The Company'’s five, ten and twenty largest cust@naecounted for approximately 45.2%, 56.5% and%5réspectively, of the
Company’s revenues for fiscal year ended Decembe? (@1 3.

During the fiscal year ended December 29, 2012tddrifechnologies Corporation accounted for 11.8%h®iCompany’s revenues and
as of December 29, 2012 represented 7.5% of thep@oy’s accounts receivable, net. No other cust@oeounted for 10% or more of
the Company’s revenues. As of December 29, 202%; Xork Power Authority total accounts receivabddance (including transit
accounts receivable of $6.9 million) was $12.5iamillor 23.3% of the total of accounts receivabtg,and transit accounts receivable.
of December 29, 2012, Ontario Power Generationa tccounts receivable balance (including traasibunts receivable of $1.9
million) was $6.3 million or 11.8% of the total acounts receivable, net and transit accountsvaiolel. No other customer accounted
for 10% or more of the Company’s accounts recewaiét. The Company’s five, ten and twenty largastomers accounted for
approximately 37.4%, 46.9% and 57.5%, respectivadlyhe Company'’s revenues for fiscal year endecebdwer 29, 2012,

Foreign Currency Trandation

The functional currency of the Company’s Canadidvsiliary is the local currency. Assets and litibg are translated at period-end
exchange rates. Income and expense items aréabethat weighted average rates of exchange pieyailiring the year. Any
translation adjustments are included in the accatadlother comprehensive income account in stodkhgl equity. Transactions
executed in different currencies resulting in exgeadjustments are translated at spot rates anlling foreign exchange transaction
gains and losses are included in the results afatipas.

Comprehensive | ncome

Comprehensive income consists of net income aragiorcurrency translation adjustments.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
Per Share Data

Basic net income per share is calculated usingvisighted-average number of common shares outsigualdining the period. Diluted net
income per share is calculated using the weightedage number of common shares plus dilutive piaiecdmmon shares outstanding
during the period. Potential dilutive common slsazensist of stock options and other stock-baset@swnder the Company’s stock
compensation plans, when their impact is dilutiBecause of the Company’s capital structure, glbreed earnings pertain to common
shareholders and no other adjustments are necessary

Share - Based Compensation

The Company recognizes share-based compensatiotheveesting period of an award based on fairevalithe grant date determined
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Gierassumptions are used to determine the faiewaflistockbased payment awards
of traded options, and because changes in the agsuimptions can materially affect the fair valstneate, the existing models may not
provide a reliable single measure of the fair valtithe employee stock options. Management asséisseassumptions and
methodologies used to calculate estimated fairevafistock-based compensation when share-basedsaa granted. Circumstances
may change and additional data may become avaitafeletime, which could result in changes to thessumptions and methodologies
and thereby materially impact our fair value deteation. See Note 11 for additional share-basedpamsation information.

Restricted stock units are recognized at theinfailue. The amount of compensation cost is medsumghe grant date fair value of the
equity instrument issued. The Compensation cositeofestricted stock units is recognized ovenibsing period of the restricted stock
units on a straighline basis. Restricted stock units typically irdgudividend accrual equivalents, which means thatdividends paid £
the Company during the vesting period become ddepagable after the vesting period assuming thetgess restricted stock unit fully
vests. Dividends for these grants are accrueti®@dividend payment dates and included in accquapable and accrued expenses ol
accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Dividrdestricted share units that ultimately do west are forfeited.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Eategrtising expense was $490 and $497 for thel fygzas ended December 28, 2013
and December 29, 2012, respectively.

. FISCAL YEAR

The Company follows a 52/53 week fiscal reportiatendar ending on the Saturday closest to DeceBibeBoth fiscal years ended
December 28, 2013 (fiscal 2013) and December 2B2 2scal 2012) were a 52-week reporting years.
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3. USE OF ESTIMATES AND UNCERTAINTIES

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfénztttae reported amounts of assets and liakslitievenues and expenses and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiestual results could differ from those estimates.

The Company uses estimates to calculate an all@evi@naoubtful accounts on its accounts receivalaldsquacy of reserves, the tax rate
applied and the valuation of certain assets amilitiaaccounts. These estimates can be signifitathe operating results and financial
position of the Company.

The Company has risk participation arrangements reispect to workers compensation and health natgance. The amounts included
in the Company’s costs related to this risk pgstition are estimated and can vary based on chamgesumptions, the Company’s
claims experience or the providers included inabsociated insurance programs.

The Company can be affected by a variety of fadtasiding uncertainty relating to the performawné¢he general economy,
competition, demand for the Company’s serviceseesdylitigation and claims and the hiring, trainargl retention of key employees.

Fair Value of Financial I nstruments

The Company’s carrying value of financial instrunsgiconsisting primarily of accounts receivablansit accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued expenses, and transit acquaydble approximates fair value due to their ligyidr their short-term nature. The
Company does not have derivative products in plageanage risks related to foreign currency fluttus for its foreign operations or
for interest rate changes.

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Company’s accounts receivable are compriséallawss:

December 28, December 29,
2013 2012
Billed $35,41! $26,60(
Accrued and unbille: 7,89 4,761
Work-in-progress 13,39 13,55:
Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales disco (978 (1,207%)
Accounts receivable, n $55,72¢ $43,70t

Unbilled receivables primarily represent revenuasied whereby those services are ready to be kifleaf the balance sheet date. Work-
in-process primarily represents revenues earnedruwthtracts which the Company contractually ingsiat future dates.
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5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment are comprised of the folowi

December 29,

December 28, 201 2012
Equipment and furnitur $2,45¢ $2,36¢
Computers and syster 5,67( 5,20¢
Leasehold improvemen 633 94¢
8,751 8,51¢
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize 6,46¢€ 6,63¢
Property and equipment, r $2,29: $1,88(

The Company writes off fully depreciated assethaear. In the fiscal years ended December 283 208l December 29, 2012, write-
offs were $1,169 and $1,466, respectively. Foffidwl years ended December 28, 2013 and DeceR8h@012, depreciation expense
was $995 and $1,193, respectively.

6. ACQUISITIONS
General
The Company has acquired numerous companies thoough history and those acquisitions have geheiatluded significant future
contingent consideration. The Company gives narasse that it will make acquisitions in the futare if they do make acquisitions
gives no assurance that such acquisitions willuoeessful.
Future Contingent Payments
As of December 28, 2013, the Company had one aatigaisition agreement whereby additional contingensideration may be
earned. Effective July 1, 2012 the Company acduiggtain assets of BGA, LLC (“BGA”) as more fullgscribed below. The Company

estimates future contingent payments at Decemhe2® as follows:

Period Endinc

December 28, 201 $31:
January 3, 201 21C
January 2, 201 222
December 31, 201 263
Estimated future contingent consideration paym $1,00¢

Actual future contingent payments may materialffedifrom the estimates above. Future contingaynpents to be made to BGA are
capped at a maximum of $3.0 million cumulativelshe Company estimates future contingent considerati payments based on
forecasted performance and recorded the net preakr of those expected payments as of Decemh@028. The measurement is
based on significant inputs that are not observiabilee market, which “Fair Value Measurements Bigtlosures” (ASU Topic 820-10-
35) refers to as Level 3 inputs.
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6.

ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED)
Future Contingent Payments (Continued)
During the fiscal years ended December 28, 201 mwmber 29, 2012, the Company reduced its lighidr contingent consideration

by $92 and $135, respectively, which relates ta20@9 acquisition of Project Solutions Group, lad is reflected in other income. The
Company paid no contingent consideration duringideal years ended December 28, 2013 and Dece?®h@012.

Shor Long

Termr Termr Total
Contingent consideration balance as of Decembe? @2 $30¢ $71c $1,02:
Liability reduced in current ye: (92 - (92
Moved from long term to short ter 30€ (30€) -
Contingent consideration balance as of Decembe2@E3 $52: $407 $93(

BGA, LLC

Effective July 1, 2012, the Company purchased gerating assets of BGA. BGA provides comprehensiuétidiscipline engineering
solutions across numerous industry sectors inctuBiower Generation (both Nuclear and Fossil), BnBejivery, Energy Management,
Architecture, Commercial Building and Manufacturinghe Company believes that the BGA assembled ferré consists of highly
trained and experienced engineers who will gresdkist RCM in executing future growth in revenuébe business acquired in the BGA
acquisition will operate as part of the Companygiieering segment. The BGA purchase consideratosisted of the following:

Cash $1,29:
Lease in excess of market, net present v 46¢
Contingent consideration, net present vi 93(
Total consideratior $2,69:

The facility lease payments in excess of markatevalre expected to be incurred over a four yeaogéollowing the effective date of tl
BGA acquisition. The acquired above market leasecorded at its fair value based on the presdoeyusing a discount rate that
reflects the risks associated with the acquireddeaqual to the difference between the contraeimalunts to be paid under the lease
agreement and an estimate of the fair market lediseat the acquisition date. The shareholdeBGA are eligible to receive post-
closing contingent consideration upon BGA exceedmgain base levels of operating income, potdpterned over four years and not
to exceed a total of $3.0 million cumulatively. efamount recorded for the contingent consideraBpnesents the acquisition date fair
value of expected consideration to be paid baseBiG@A’s forecasted operating income during the fpear period. Expected
consideration was valued based on different passiténarios for projected operating income. Eask wvas assigned a probability
which was used to calculate an estimate of thecémted future payments. Then a discount rate paiged to these forecasted future
payments to determine the acquisition date fame#éb be recorded. At the time of the acquisittbe,book and tax basis of assets and
liabilities acquired are the same, except for thevae market value lease which gave rise to a defdax asset as shown below.
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6.

ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED)
Future Contingent Payments (Continued)

The acquisition has been accounted for under thehpae method of accounting. The total estimatednase price has been allocated as
follows:

Fixed asset $2¢
Restricted covenan 70
Customer relationshiy 18C
Deferred tax assi 187
Goodwill 2,22¢
Total consideratior $2,69:

The primary item that generated goodwill was thgugition of a highly skilled and trained assemhleatkforce of engineers that the
Company anticipates will allow it to win contraetards from its current and future customer basethleaCompany would not otherwise
win.

Pro Forma Results of Operations

The following (unaudited) results of operations &éeen prepared assuming the BGA acquisition heuwircesd
as of the beginning of the fifty-two week periodled December 29, 2012. Those results are not rexdgsndicative of results of future
operations or of results that would have occurrd the acquisition occurred as of the beginninthefperiod presented.

Proforma Results
for the
Fiscal Year Ende
December 29, 201

Revenue! $148,42|
Operating incom: $5,36:
Basic and diluted earnings per sh $0.2¢

GOODWILL

Goodwill represents the premium paid over thevialue of the net tangible and intangible assetsiaed,in business combinations. The
Company is required to assess the carrying valits oéporting units that contain goodwill at leastan annual basis. The Company has
the option to first assess qualitative factorsdtedmine whether it is necessary to perform a ttep-snpairment test. If the Company
believes, as a result of the qualitative assessristtit is more likely than not that the fair walof a reporting unit is less than the
carrying value, the quantitative impairment teseiguired. The Company formally assesses thedaajive factors, and if necessary,
conducts its annual goodwill impairment test atheflast day of the Company’s fiscal November eaar or if indicators of impairment
exist. The Company has determined that the gtigbtéactors that exist do not suggest that an impent of goodwill exists.

The carrying amount of goodwill at both DecemberZ®.3 and December 29, 2012 for the Company’srigging, Information
Technology and Specialty Health Care segments @@28, $5,516 and $1,703, respectively.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amount of intangibsetssfor the fiscal years ended December 28, 260dPacember 29, 2012 are as

follows:
Information
Engineering Technology Total
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ - $21( $21(
Intangibles acquire 25C - 25(
Amortization of intangibles during (24 (104 (128
fiscal 2012
Balance as of December 29, 2( $22¢ $10¢ $33:
Amortization of intangibles during
fiscal 201z (47) (69) (11€)
Balance as of December 28, 2( $17¢ $37 $21¢€
Schedule of Intangible Assets by class at Dece@®g2013:
Information
Engineering Technology Total
Restricted covenan $44 $ - $44
Customer relationshiy 13t 37 172
Balance as of December 28, 2( $17¢ $37 $21¢
Expected Future Amortization Expense:
Information
Fiscal Yeal Engineering Technology Total
2014 $47 $32 $7¢
2015 48 5 53
2016 39 - 39
2017 30 - 30
2018 15 - 15
Total $17¢ $37 $21¢
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9. LINE OF CREDIT

The Company and its subsidiaries are party to m &gmeement with Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania,rated and restated effective
February 20, 2009, which provides for a $15 milliemolving credit facility and includes a sub-linoit $5 million for letters of credit (the
“Revolving Credit Facility”). The Revolving Credracility has been amended several times, moshtigaen December 24, 2011 when
the maturity date was extended to August 31, 2@drrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility begerest at one of two alternative
rates, as selected by the Company at each incrahitemtowing. These alternatives are: (i) LIBORdon Interbank Offered Rate),
plus applicable margin, or (ii) the agent bangtime rate. The Company also pays unused leelfased on the amount of the Revol
Credit Facility that is not drawn. Unused linedege recorded as interest expense.

All borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facilaye collateralized by all of the assets of the Camypand its subsidiaries and a pledge
of the stock of its subsidiaries. The Revolvingdit Facility also contains various financial arahffinancial covenants, such as
restrictions on the Company’s ability to borrowpiy dividends. Since the Company did not borrowrarer to fund the dividend paid on
December 29, 2012, the Company did not requirevaaiyer under its Revolving Credit Facility.

There were no borrowings during the fiscal yeareghBecember 28, 2013 and fiscal year ended DeceR®$he012. At December :
2013 and December 29, 2012, there were lettersragfitcoutstanding for $0.8 million. At December, 2813, the Company h
availability for additional borrowings under the\Réving Credit Facility of $14.2 million.

10. PER SHARE DATA
The Company uses the treasury stock method toladdcihe weighted-average shares used for diliaeuregs per share. The number of
common shares used to calculate basic and dilatedngs per share for fiscal years ended Decentye2®.3 and December 29, 2012
was determined as follows:

Fiscal Years Ende

December 28, December 29,
2013 2012
Basic weighted average shares outstan 12,343,26 12,343,42
Dilutive effect of outstanding stock optio 135,11: 196,70¢
Weighted average dilutive shares outstan 12,478,37 12,540,13

There were 97,500 absolute anti-dilutive sharesnudtided in the calculation of common stock eqléags for both the fiscal year ended
December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012. Thesedetermined to be anti-dilutive because the esengiices of these shares for the
period were higher than the average price of @tehfor the same period.
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10.

11.

PER SHARE DATA (CONTINUED)

Unissued shares of common stock were reservetiddiotlowing purposes:

December 28, December 29,
2013 2012
Exercise of options outstandil 276,90( 307,40(
Restricted stock awards outstand 300,00( 350,00t
Future grants of options or sha 34,10( 34,10(
Shares reserved for employee stock purchase 189,57t 247,75:
Total 800,57t 939,25.

SHARE BASED COMPENSATION

At December 28, 2013, the Company had three staseebemployee compensation plans. The Companynesase fair value of
share-based awards, if and when granted, basdwdldack-Scholes method and using the closing nhgkee of the Company’s
common stock on the date of grant. Awards vest pgaods ranging from one to three years and expithin 10 years of

issuance. Share-based compensation expense rel@edrds is amortized in accordance with appleabsting periods using the
straight-line method. Share-based compensatioaresepof $849 and $169 was recognized for the fisgzal ended December 28, 2013
and December 29, 2012, respectively.

As of December 28, 2013, the Company had approrim&t..1 million of total unrecognized compensatost related to all non-vested
share-based awards granted under the Companytsugashare-based plans, which the Company expertsdgnize over approximately
a three-year period. These amounts do not indlueleost of any additional share-based awardargitbe granted in future periods or
reflect any potential changes in the Company’sefitufe rate.

The Company granted 5,000 stock options and 40@t€icted stock units during the fiscal year enDedember 28, 2013 and 55,000
stock options and 350,000 restricted stock unitinduthe fiscal year ended December 29, 2012.
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11.

SHARE BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

The risk-free rate of return is based on the yigltd.S. Treasury Strips with terms equal to theeeted life of the grants as of the grant
date. The expected term of grant is based onrluatstock option exercise experience. The Compesed its historical stock price
volatility to compute the expected stock price tititg. The expected dividend yield is based oa @ompany’s fiscal 2013 dividend
rate. The annual forfeiture rate is based on thmg@any’s historical experience. The Blagkholes option weighted average assump
used in the valuation of share based awards fdiigbal years ended December 28, 2013 and Dece?28h@012 were as follows:

Fiscal Years Ende

December 28, December 29,
2013 2012
Weighted average ri-free interest rat 1.74% 0.71%
Expected term of optio 5 year 5 year
Expected stock price volatilil 52% 61%
Expected dividend yiel 0.00% 0.00%
Annual forfeiture ratt 5.98% 4.68%
Weightec-average grant date fair val $2.9¢ $2.8¢

1996 Executive Stock Option Plan (the 1996 Plan)

The 1996 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockineldeAugust 1996 and amended in April 1999, predifor the issuance of up to
1,250,000 shares of common stock to officers aydekeployees of the Company and its subsidiariesutitt January 1, 2006, at which
time the 1996 Plan expired. Options are genegabiyited at fair market value at the date of gramte Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors determined the vesting periothattime of grant. As of December 28, 2013, omtito purchase 132,000 shares of
common stock granted under the 1996 Plan wereamdstg.

2000 Employee Stock I ncentive Plan (the 2000 Plan)

The 2000 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockineldeApril 2001, provides for the issuance of a1 {500,000 shares of the
Companys common stock to officers and key employees ofabmpany and its subsidiaries or to consultantsaaivisors utilized by th
Company. The Compensation Committee of the BohRirectors could award incentive stock optionsion-qualified stock options, as

well as stock appreciation rights, and determitnedviesting period at the time of grant. As of Deber 28, 2013, options to purchase
70,500 shares of common stock granted under the RGh were outstanding.

The 1996 Plan and 2000 Plan are expired and tirerafoshares are available for issuance.
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11.

SHARE BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)
2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the 2007 Plan)

The 2007 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockinelideJune 2007, provides for the issuance of UfD000 shares of the Company’
common stock to officers, non-employee directonspleyees of the Company and its subsidiaries oswitents and advisors utilized by
the Company. No more than 350,000 shares of constoak in the aggregate may be issued pursuamatdsgyof stock awards, stock
units, performance shares and other stock-basediawalo more than 300,000 shares of common stdttkrespect to awards may be
granted to any individual during any fiscal yedhe Compensation Committee of the Board of Direxctiatermines the vesting period at
the time of grant. As of December 28, 2013, under2007 Plan, 34,100 shares of common stock weiéahble for future grants and
options to purchase 74,400 shares of common stsckiell as 300,000 restricted stock units, werstantling.

Restricted Stock Units

On November 16, 2012, the Company granted 350 @&ificted stock units all of which fully vest aftaree years of continued

service. All of these restricted stock units imtgdividend accrual equivalents, which means thatdividends paid by the Company
during the three year vesting period become dugragdble after the three year vesting period agsyithie grantee’restricted stock ur
fully vests. Dividends for these grants are actre the dividend payment dates and included in@atts payable and accrued expenses
on the accompanying consolidated balance sheeidddids for restricted share units that ultimatiynot vest are forfeited.

To date, the Company has only issued restrictaezk stoits under the 2007 Plan. The following sunizes the restricted stock units
activity under the 2007 Plan during 2013:

Number of Restricted

Stock Units Weighted Average
(in thousands) Grant Date Fair
Value per Shar
Outstanding nc-vested at December 29, 2C 35C $5.62
Grantec 40
Vested (50
Forfeited or expired (40)
Outstanding nc-vested at December 28, 2C 30C $5.72

Based on the closing price of the Company’s comsiook of $6.95 per share on December 27, 2013nthesic value of the norester
restricted stock units at December 28, 2013 wak ®#lion. As of December 28, 2013, there was appnately $1.0 million of total
unrecognized compensation cost related to reddritteck units, which is expected to be recognizext a weighted-average period of
approximately 22.5 months.
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11. SHARE BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)
Stock Option Awards
Transactions related to all stock options undeplalhs are as follows:

All Stock Options Outstandin
Weighted Average

Shares Exercise Prict

Options outstanding as of December 31, 2 916,59: $4.2¢
Options grante 55,00( $5.5¢
Options exercised, n (392,37¢) $3.8¢
Options forfeited in cashless exerci: (243,26
Options forfeited/cancelle (28,550 $3.8¢
Options outstanding as of December 29, 2 307,40( $5.3¢
Options exercisable as of December 29, Z 252,40( $5.2¢
Intrinsic value of outstanding stock options aPetember 29, 201 $167
Intrinsic value of stock options exercised in fispsar ended

December 29, 201 $1,46¢
Weighted average grant date fair value of stocloaptissued
during fiscal year ended December 29, 2 $2.8¢
Options outstanding as of December 29, 2 307,40( $5.3¢
Options grante 5,00( $5.7¢
Options exercised, n (27,500 $4.1¢
Options forfeited/cancelle (8,000 $5.1¢
Options outstanding as of December 28, 2 276,90( $5.45
Options exercisable as of December 28, Z 221,90( $5.4¢
Intrinsic value of outstanding stock options aPetember 28, 201 $50¢
Intrinsic value of stock options exercised in fispsar ended

December 28, 201 $44
Weighted average grant date fair value of stocloaptissued
during fiscal year ended December 28, 2 $2.9¢
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11. SHARE BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)
Stock Option Awards (Continued)

A summary of the status of our nonvested stoclooptbutstanding as of December 28, 2013, and ceahgeng the year then ended is
presented as follows:

Weighed-Average

Grant-Date
Nonvested Stock Optior Shares Fair Value
Nonvested at December 29, 2C 55,00( $2.85
Vested 0
Forfeited (5,000 $2.88
Issued nonveste 5,00( $2.94
Nonvested at December 28, 2( 55,00( $2.86

The following table summarizes information abowaicktoptions outstanding at December 28, 2013:

Weighted-Average

Range of Number of Remaining Weighted-Average
Exercise Price Outstanding Option Contractual Life Exercise Prict

Outstanding Vested Outstanding Vested Outstanding Vested

$2.50- $2.50 1,00C 1,00( 5.96 5.96 $2.50 $2.50
$4.16- $5.78 233,40( 178,40( 3.41 1.80 $4.82 $4.60
$6.44- $9.16 17,50( 17,50( 1.06 1.06 $8.01 $8.01
$9.81- $9.81 25,00( 25,00( 3.55 3.55 $9.81 $9.81
276,90( 221,90( 3.28 1.96 $5.47 $5.45

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company implemented the 2001 Employee Stoc&hRse Plan (the “Purchase Plawi)h shareholder approval, effective Januar
2001. Under the Purchase Plan, employees meetitgjrt specific employment qualifications are dligito participate and can purchase
shares of common stock semi-annually through phgiealuctions at the lower of 85% of the fair mankaiue of the stock at the
commencement or end of the offering period. Thelpase plan permits eligible employees to purckhaees of common stock through
payroll deductions for up to 10% of qualified compation. During the fiscal years ended Decembge2@83 and December 29, 2012,
there were 58,176 and 29,205 shares issued urel@uttthase Plan for net proceeds of $259 and $428ectively. As of December 28,
2013, there were 189,576 shares available for iesuander the Purchase Plan. Compensation expepsesenting the discount to the
qguoted market price, for the Purchase Plan fofifital years ended December 28, 2013 and Decengh@022 was $106 and $65,
respectively.
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12.

13.

14.

TREASURY STOCK TRANSACTIONS

Our Board of Directors instituted a share repuref@egram in February 2010, which authorized tipairehase of up to $7.5 million of
the Company’s outstanding shares of our commork stbprevailing market prices, from time to timesothe subsequent 12 months. In
February 2011, the share repurchase program wesded through February 2013. During the fiscal yealed December 28, 2013, the
Company repurchased 15,450 shares for an averagegbi$5.35 per share. Since the inception ddligre repurchase program and
through December 28, 2013, the Company has purdHa4&3,306 shares at a total cost of approxim&elg million, or an average
price of $5.09. As of January 4, 2013, the Compassd 100% of the funds approved by its Board eé®ors in February 2010 to
repurchase the Company’s common stock.

On October 28, 2013, the Board of Directors autteatian additional repurchase program to purchase $p.0 million of outstanding
shares of common stock at the prevailing markegstifrom time to time over the subsequent 12-mpatiod. As of December 28,
2013, the Company had not purchased any shares tigladditional repurchase program.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02 “Répg of Amounts Reclassified out of Accumulatech&tComprehensive
Income”. This update requires companies to pretbeneffects on the line items of net income of gigant reclassifications out of
accumulated other comprehensive income if the amoeing reclassified is required under U.S. geheealcepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) to be reclassified in its entirety to necome in the same reporting period. ASU 2013-0ffisctive prospectively for the
Company for fiscal years, and interim periods witthiose years, beginning after December 15, 200 . ompany’s adoption of the
amended guidance did not have a significant impaéts consolidated financial statements.

Other accounting standards that have been issustposed by the FASB and SEC and/or other stardsatting bodies that do not
require adoption until a future date are not expetd have a material impact on the consolidateahftiial statements upon adoption.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company follows “Disclosures about Segmen@noEnterprise and Related Information,” which dithbs standards for companies
to report information about operating segmentsgeggghic areas and major customers. The accoupdligies of each segment are the
same as those described in the summary of signifexacounting policies (see Note 1 to the Compa@gssolidated Financial
Statements included in its Annual Report on ForaK1or the year ended December 28, 2013.)
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14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment operating income includes selling, geradladministrative expenses directly attributablthat segment as well as charges for
allocating corporate costs to each of the operaagments. The following tables reflect the rasoftthe segments consistent with the
Company’s management system:

Fiscal Year Ended Information Specialty Healt!

December 28, 2013 Engineerinc Technology Care Corporate Total
Revenue $86,74. $55,26! $28,77: $ - $170,77!
Cost of service 67,00¢ 39,41: 20,00( - 126,41
Selling, general and administrati 14,357 13,54( 7,617 - 35,51«
Non-recurring charge 34z 14z - 4,69 5,181
Depreciation and amortizatic 702 30C 10¢ - 1,111
Operating incom $4,33¢ $1,86¢ $1,047 ($4,69)) $2,55¢
Total asset $42,95: $14,47: $14,33: $14,76° $86,52:
Capital expenditure $1,14: $7¢ $3E $151 $1,40¢
Fiscal Year Ended Information Specialty Healtl

December 29, 2012 Engineering Technology Care Corporate Total
Revenue $66,63: $52,16! $27,02: $ - $145,81
Cost of service 50,73 36,93 18,43¢ - 106,10:
Selling, general and administrati 12,12« 13,70 7,33¢ - 33,16¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 72C A7 124 - 1,321
Operating incom $3,05¢ $1,05¢ $1,12( $ - $5,22¢
Total asset $39,44: $15,49: $10,41¢ $19,19: $84,54¢
Capital expenditure $34( $5¢ $8 $10< $511
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14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
The Company derives a majority of its revenue fadfites in the United States. Revenues reporteddoh operating segment are all
from external customers. The Company is domiditetthe United States and its segments operatesit/ttited States, Canada and Pu
Rico. Revenues by geographic area for the fiscalsyended December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2053 #ollows:

Fiscal Year Ende

December 28 December 2¢
2013 2012
Revenue:
United State: $130,58! $120,32
Canad:e 34,98¢ 20,64
Puerto Ricc 5,20( 4,84¢
$170,77! $145,81

Total assets by geographic area as of the reppeedds are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ende

December 2€ December 2€
2013 2012
Total Assets
United State: $62,19¢ $68,36:
Canade 22,99 14,61:
Puerto Ricc 1,33: 1,572
$86,52- $84,54¢
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15. INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense (benefit) roninuing operations are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ende

December 28,

December 29,

2013 2012
Current

Federal $45( $1,02¢
State and loce 407 42C
Foreign 41€ (129)
1,27: 1,31¢

Deferred
Federal (547 617
State (157 17¢
Foreign 22 (12
(67€) 784
Total $597 $2,10¢

The components of earnings before income taxesritetl States and foreign jurisdictions were aofed:

Fiscal Years Ende

December 28,

December 29,

2013 2012
United State: $1,17¢ $5,79(
Foreign Jurisdiction 1,412 (460)
$2,58" $5,33(

The consolidated effective income tax rate fordheent year was 24.1% as compared to 39.5% focdheparable prior year period,
principally due to the reversal of liability forghuncertain tax position in the current year. Hw®me tax provisions for continuing
operations reconciled to the tax computed at thieitstry Federal rate are:

December 28,

December 29,

2013 2012

Tax at statutory rate (cred 34.(% 34.(%
State income taxes, net of Federal

income tax benef 6.5 7.4
Permanent difference 2.6 (2.9
Foreign income tax ra (1.6 0.3C
Reverse liability for amended retu (18.9) -
Other, ne 0.9 0.2
Total income tax expent 24.1% 39.5,
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15. INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)
A reconciliation of the unrecognized tax benefisthe year December 28, 2013:

Unrecognized Tax Benefi

Balance as of December 29, 2( $47:
Charges for current year tax positic (473
Reserves for current year tax posil 62€

Balance as of December 28, 2( $62¢

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits imdatto the Company’s tax positions is subject targfe based on future events
including, but not limited to, the settlements afjoing audits and/or the expiration of applicaliédiges of limitations. Although the
outcomes and timing of such events are highly uauerit is reasonably possible that the balancgro$s unrecognized tax benefits will
not change during the next 12 months. However, ghsin the occurrence, expected outcomes and tiafitigpse events could cause the
Company’s current estimate to change materialthénfuture.

The Company accounts for penalties or interesteéls uncertain tax positions as part of its psimrn for income taxes and records such
amounts to interest expense. The Company recaordedpense for penalties or interest in the figears ended December 28, 2013 and
December 29, 2012.

At December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012, def¢areassets and liabilities consist of the follogi

December 28, December 29,
2013 2012

Deferred tax asset

Allowance for doubtful accoun $391 $48:
Acquisition amortization, ne 1,64z 2,21«
Reserves and accru: 1,55¢ 432
Other 33¢ 17¢
Total deferred tax asse 3,927 3,30¢
Deferred tax liabilities

Prepaid expense defer (367) (43€)
Bonus depreciation to be revers (11¢) (129
Canada deferred tax liability, n (132) (73)
Total deferred tax liabilitie (617) (63€)
Total deferred tax assets, | $3,31( $2,67(
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15.

16.

17.

INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

The Company conducts its operations in multiplejaisdictions in the United States, Canada andtBuRico. The Company and its
subsidiaries file a consolidated U.S. Federal inedax return and file in various states. The Comgjzafederal income tax returns have
been examined through 2010. With limited excegjdhe Company is no longer subject to audits aesind local tax authorities for 1
years prior to 2009.

CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, the Company is a defendant aingiff in various legal actions that arise in ti@mal course of business. As such,
Company is required to assess the likelihood ofadwerse outcomes to these matters as well astjgbtemges of losses and possible
recoveries. The Company may not be covered byanse as it pertains to some or all of these nmsmttArdetermination of the amount
the provision required for these commitments amtingencies, if any, which would be charged to gays, is made after careful analy
of each matter. Once established, a provision chayge in the future due to new developments angdsin circumstances, and could
increase or decrease the Company'’s earnings ipetlied that the changes are made. Included i€tdrepany’s accounts payable and
accrued expenses is a provision for losses froal legtters aggregating approximately $0.2 millisoaDecember 28, 2013 and
December 29, 2012. Asserted claims in these nsatg®k approximately $10.7 million in damages éBesfember 28, 2013.

The Company is also subject to other pending lpgateedings and claims that arise from time to timéhe ordinary course of
business, which may not be covered by insurance.

RETIREMENT PLANS
Profit Sharing Plan

The Company maintains a 401(k) profit sharing gtarthe benefit of eligible employees in the Unitethtes and other similar plans in
Canada and Puerto Rico (the “Retirement Planste 401(k) plan includes a cash or deferred arrapgépursuant to Section 401(k) of
the Internal Revenue Code sponsored by the Comjpampvide eligible employees an opportunity toestlefompensation and have such
deferred amounts contributed to the 401(k) plama pne-tax basis, subject to certain limitationsie Tompany, at the discretion of the
Board of Directors, may make contributions of cessmatch deferrals of compensation by participantie Retirement

Plans. Contributions to the Retirement Plans atitg operations by the Company for the fiscal yemded December 28, 2013 and
December 29, 2012 were $424 and $373, respectively.
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18.

COMMITMENTS
Executive Severance Agreements with Kevin Miller and Rocco Campanelli

The Company is a party to Executive Severance Ageeds (the “Executive Severance Agreements”) withd® Campanelli, the
Company’s President and Chief Executive OfficeofaSebruary 28, 2014, and Kevin Miller, the Comparghief Financial Officer,
which set forth the terms and conditions of cergagments to be made by the Company to each exedutthe event, while employed
by the Company, such executive experiences (a)rartation of employment unrelated to a “Change amttol” (as defined therein) or
(b) there occurs a Change in Control and eithghé&)executive’'s employment is terminated for aoearelated to the Change in Control
or (ii) the executive remains continuously employéth the Company for a specified period of timédwing the Change in Control (i.«
twelve months for Mr. Campanelli and three montrsMr. Miller).

Under the terms of the Executive Severance Agre@nireither (a) the executive is involuntarilyrténated by the Company for any
reason other than “Cause” (as defined therein)sdbility” (as defined therein) or death, or (b) éhecutive resigns for “Good

Reason” (as defined therein), and, in each casdetimination is not a “Termination Related to a@de in Control” (as defined below),
the executive will receive the following severapegments: (i) an amount equal to 1.5 times the gli(@) the executive’s annual base
salary as in effect immediately prior to the teration date (before taking into account any reductimt constitutes Good Reason)
(“Annual Base Salary”) and (b) the highest annumdus paid to the executive in any of the threeafigears immediately preceding the
executive’s termination date (“Bonus”), to be paidnstallments over the twelve month period foliog/the executives termination dat:
and (i) for a period of eighteen months followitig executive’s termination date, a monthly paynseptal to the monthly COBRA
premium that the executive is required to pay tatiooie medical, vision, and dental coverage, fardalf and, where applicable, his
spouse and eligible dependents.

Notwithstanding the above, if the executive hasrmination as described above and can reasonablgrdgrate that such termination
would constitute a Termination Related to a Chandeontrol, and a Change in Control occurs with2® Hays following the executive’'s
termination date, the executive will be entitleddoeive the payments set forth below for a TertionaRelated to a Change in Control,
less any amounts already paid to the executiven gpasummation of the Change in Control.

Under the terms of the Executive Severance Agresniém Change in Control occurs and (a) the etree@xperiences a Termination
Related to a Change in Control on account of (iln&oluntary termination by the Company for anys@a other than Cause, death, or
Disability, (ii) an involuntary termination by t@ompany within a specified period of time followiagChange in Control (i.e., twelve
months for Mr. Campanelli and three months for Miller) on account of Disability or death, or (i) resignation by the executive with
Good Reason; or (b) a resignation by the executiith, or without Good Reason, which results inrani@ation date that is the last day
the specified period (i.e., twelve months for Man@panelli and three months for Mr. Miller) follovgra Change in Control, then the
executive will receive the following severance pays: (1) a lump sum payment equal to two timestima of the executive’s (a)
Annual Base Salary and (b) Bonus; and (2) a lunmp gayment equal to twenfgur multiplied by the monthly COBRA premium coas
in effect immediately prior to the executive’s ténation date, for the executive to continue medidehtal and vision coverage, as
applicable, in such Company plans for himself @napplicable, his spouse and eligible dependents.
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18.

19.

COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
Executive Severance Agreements with Kevin Miller and Rocco Campanelli (Continued)

The Executive Severance Agreements provide thheiExecutive remains continuously employed fquecHied period of time followin
a Change in Control (i.e., twelve months for Mrn@anelli and three months for Mr. Miller) and is@oyed by the Company on the |
day of such specified period, the executive witlgige a lump sum payment equal to two times the glutine executives (a) Annual Bas
Salary and (b) Bonus (the “Change in Control Paytieitf the executive receives the Change in Colffayment, the executive will not
be eligible to receive any severance payments uniddixecutive Severance Agreement.

As of December 28, 2013, the Company also had wsgonployment arrangements with Mr. Kopyt. Mr. Kowill retire effective on
February 28, 2014 and his severance arrangemelhtsevin accordance with the Separation Agreemedt@eneral Release between |
and the Company entered into as of January 22,.2014

Operating Leases
The Company leases office facilities and variousiggent under non-cancelable leases expiring &wsudates through June

2020. Certain leases are subject to escalatiasetabased upon changes in various factors. Thenmimfuture annual operating lease
commitments for leases with non-cancelable terxdusive of unknown operating escalation chargesaa follows ($ in thousands):

Fiscal Year: Amouni
2014 $2,90¢
2015 2,601
2016 1,86¢
2017 1,50¢
2018 1,30z
Thereaftel 50¢
Total $10,68°

Rent expense for the fiscal years ended Decemh&(28 and December 29, 2012 was $2,896 and $283i@ctively.
The Company subleases space to other tenantsietvaiffice locations under cancelable lease agee¢sn During the fiscal years ent
December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012 paymeafgpodximately $203 and $356, respectively, weceiked under these leasing
arrangements. The Company offsets these paymgaitssa its rent expense for reporting purposes.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Richard Machon, a director of the Company, frometitm time provides consulting services to the Campa for clients of the Company

through Mr. Machon’s company, Machon & Associat&se Company paid Machon & Associates $43 and $4igl the fiscal years
ended December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012atasyly.
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20. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUD ITED)
Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2013
Diluted
Gross Operating Net Income
Sales Profit Income Income Per Shar
1st Quarte $41,23( $10,62: $1,51¢ $96( $0.0¢
2nd Quarte 42,37¢ 11,26: 1,71« 1,47( 0.1z
3rd Quatrte! 41,32( 10,68:¢ 1,80¢ 1,14 0.0¢
4th Quarter? 45,84¢ 11,79: (2,479 (1,582) (0.13)
Total $170,77: $44,36: $2,55¢ $1,99( $0.1¢
*Includes severance and other charges of $4.8ani(lsee note 21).
Fiscal Year Ended December 29, 2012
Diluted
Gross Operating Net Income
Sales Profit Income Income Per Shar
1st Quarte $38,20¢ $10,28! $1,77¢ $1,05¢ $0.0¢
2nd Quarte 35,75 9,65¢ 1,01t 50t 0.04
3rd Quatrte! 34,83¢ 9,67¢ 1,107 634 0.0t
4th Quartel 37,01¢ 10,09¢ 1,33( 1,02¢ 0.0¢
Total $145,81° $39,71! $5,22¢ $3,22° $0.2¢

21. SEVERANCE AND OTHER CHARGES

The Company recognized $5.2 million in severanakather charges for the fiscal year ended Dece2®e?013 as compared to zero
the comparable prior year period. The Companyriecliexpenses of $4.5 million related to eventditegto the election to our Board of
Directors on December 5, 2013 of two candidatesinated by a group of our stockholders and the syles# retirement of Leon Kopyt,
the Company’s President and Chief Executive OfficBne Company incurred severance and other retageenses of $2.9 million as a
result of the voluntary retirement of Mr. Kopytn December 2013, Mr. Kopyt notified the Companyisfintention to retire and offered
to negotiate a lower severance amount than he wwaud been otherwise contractually entitled to uhieseverance agreement upon
change of control of the Company. The negotiatwith Mr. Kopyt was conducted as the central par global settlement agreement
with Legion Partners. The Company, Legion Partaes Mr. Kopyt agreed on the reduced severance mainmofiscal 2013 contingent
upon other provisions ultimately finalized in agr@ement signed on January 22, 2014. Mr. Kopgtisament became effective on
February 28, 2014. The Company also incurred $ill®n related to the proxy contest leading to Becember 5, 2013 annual meeting,
consisting of $1.0 million incurred by the Compamd $0.6 million incurred by the stockholder growpjch the Company agreed to
reimburse.

The Company also incurred $0.5 million in facilitieonsolidation charges and $0.2 million in prafesal fees related to a research and
development tax credit study. The facilities cdigtion charges were incurred because the CompdDghadian operations elected to
consolidate its Mississauga location into its exjehPickering location and closed its Mason, Offfic®.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
RCM Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of RCM Technologies, Inc. (a Nevada catipm) and Subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 28, 2013 and Decembe2@92, and the related consolidated statementgcofiie, comprehensive income,
changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flowsfmh of the fiscal years in the two-year periodeehdecember 28, 2013. The financial
statements are the responsibility of the Compamgsagement. Our responsibility is to express amiapon these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hamewere we engaged to perform, an audit of terival control over financial reporting.
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtwer financial reporting as a basis for desigranidit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of esging an opinion on the effectiveness of the Comiganternal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opiniédm audit includes examining, on a test basisjente supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An aaldiv includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall fiimhstatement presentation. We believe that adita provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referr@alove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of RCM
Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of Decer2®eP013 and December 29, 2012, and the consdiidasellts of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the years in the two-yeaiopeended December 28, 2013, in conformity witbcmting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

In connection with our audit of the consolidatathficial statements referred to above, we alsoedi§icthedule 11 — Valuation and
Qualifying Accounts and Reserves for each of thedli years in two-year period ended December 2B3.20n our opinion, this financial

schedule, when considered in relation to the caoeigld financial statements taken as a whole, ptegairly, in all material respects, the
information stated therein.

EisnerAmper LLP

Iselin, New Jersey
February 27, 2014
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SCHEDULE Il

RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES
Fiscal Years Ended December 28, 2013 and Decembé&;, 2012

(Dollars in thousands, except share and per sla@meunts, unless otherwise indicated)

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Balance at Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and End of
Description of Period Expense! Deduction Period
Fiscal Year Ended
December 28, 2013
Allowance for doubtful
accounts on trade receivab $1,20° $301 ($530) $97¢
Provision for contingencies for
legal matter: $17¢ $8¢ ($75) $18¢
Fiscal Year Ended
December 29, 2012
Allowance for doubtful
accounts on trade receivab $1,45¢ $15( $39¢ $1,20°
Provision for contingencies for
legal matter: $34( $2¢ $19( $17¢
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EXHIBIT INDEX

(21)
(23.1)
(31.1)
(31.2)

(32.1)

(32.2)

*(101.INS)
*(101.SCH)
**(101.CAL)
*+(101.LAB)
*+(101.PRE)

*+(101.DEF)

*%

Subsidiaries of the Registra

Consent of EisnerAmper LLI

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Requiregl Rule 13-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asraaed.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Requireg Rule 13-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asrahd
Certifications of Chief Executive OfficeeRuired by Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Excleafagt of 1934, as

amended. (This exhibit shall not be deemed “file"purposes of Section 18 of the Securities ErgleaAct of 1934, as
amended, or otherwise subject to the liabilityhattsection. Further, this exhibit shall not berded to be incorporated by
reference into any filing under the Securities 81933, as amended, or the Securities Exchangef&Q34, as amende
Certifications of Chief Financial OfficeeRuired by Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Excleaiigt of 1934, as

amended. (This exhibit shall not be deemed “fil&d"purposes of Section 18 of the Securities ErgleaAct of 1934, as
amended, or otherwise subject to the liabilityhattsection. Further, this exhibit shall not berded to be incorporated by
reference into any filing under the Securities 81933, as amended, or the Securities ExchangefAd34, as amende
XBRL Instance Documer

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenis

XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Docume

XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Languag&prmation is furnished and not filed or a parbaakgistration statement

or prospectus for purposes of sections 11 or XBeSecurities Act of 1933, is deemed not filedgorposes of section 18
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and oth&is not subject to liability under these secti




EXHIBIT 21

Business Support Group of Michigan, Inc.
Cataract, Inc.

Programming Alternatives of Minnesota, Inc.

RCM Technologies Canada Corp.
RCM Technologies (USA), Inc.
RCMT Delaware, Inc.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT




EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements of RCM Technologies, &md Subsidiaries on Form S8 (No. 333-
165482, effective March 15, 2010, No. 333-1459@¢ctive September 6, 2007, No. 333-61306, effectiyril 21, 1993, No. 333-80590,
effective June 22, 1994, No. 333-48089, effectivardh 17, 1998, No. 333-52206, effective Decembel000 and No. 333-52480, effective
December 21, 2000) of our report dated Februar2@¥4 , on our audits of the consolidated finansiatements and financial statement
schedule as of December 28, 2013 and Decembe022,ahd for each of the fiscal years in the tworyeaiod ended December 28, 2013 ,

which report is included in this Annual Report aori 10-K.

EISNERAMPER LLP

Iselin, NJ
February 27, 2014




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION REQUIRED BY
RULE 13a-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, Leon Kopyt, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16flRCM Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or éméttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in thégport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alnare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(&) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedortge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgritie period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdorting, or caused such internal control oveatriitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any changééregistrant’s internal control over financial sgjing that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repogj and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anlgave disclosed, based on our most recent evaifuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

(@ All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the registrarst
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2014 /siLeon Kopyt

Leon Kopyt
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer antebior




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION REQUIRED BY
RULE 13a-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, Kevin D. Miller, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16flRCM Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omgttie a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, ni#adisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in thégport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alnare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedortge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financggdorting, or caused such internal control oveatriitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any chang@éregistrant’'s internal control over financial sgjing that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repogdj and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anlgave disclosed, based on our most recent evaifuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

(@ All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrast’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2014 /siKevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre!




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10f4R&M Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) for thedal year ended December 28,
2013, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Léapyt, President & Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 ICSsection 1350, as adopted pursuant to secti6roBthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to

my knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 041238 amended (15 U.S.C. sec
78m (a)); and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/siLeon Kopyt
Leon Kopyt
Chairman, President, Chief Executive
Officer and Director
February 27, 201

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to RCM Technedodnc. and will be retained by RCM
Technologies, Inc. and furnished to the Securéies Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10f4R&M Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) for thedal year ended December 28,
2013, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, KeBinMiller, Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. secli®b0, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of tHeaSas-Oxley Act of 2002, to my
knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 041238 amended (15 U.S.C. sec
78m (a)); and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/siKevin D. Miller
Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer
and Secretary
February 27, 201

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to RCM Technedodnc. and will be retained by RCM
Technologies, Inc. and furnished to the Securéies Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



AMENDMENT
TO

SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

Amendment (the "Amendment") to a certain AmendeatiRestated Loan and Security Agreement, dated Bslofiary
19, 2009, by and among RCM Technologies, Inc. draf &s subsidiaries (collectively, the “Borrower Citizens Bank of
Pennsylvania, a Pennsylvania state chartered baitk,capacity as administrative agent and arraftbe “Agent”), and Citizens
Bank of Pennsylvania, as lender (the “Bank”).

WHEREAS, the Bank and the Borrower made, executed and detive Second Amended and Restated Loan and
Security Agreement, dated as of February 19, 2066 {Loan and Security Agreement”), and in cotioecherewith the
Borrower executed and delivered a Sixth AmendedRaestated Revolving Credit Note payable to the oofléhe Bank, in the
original principal amount of $15,000,000.00, datetbruary 19, 2009 (the "Revolving Promissory Nagtatid

WHEREAS, as security for (a) the punctual performance ihldulthe Borrower of its obligations under the Loan
Documents (as such term is defined in the LoanSewlirity Agreement), (b) the punctual payment ihdall amounts owing
or to be owing under any Loan Document, (c) thechuad payment of any other amounts which at an tinay be due and
payable from the Borrower to the Bank, in each eésether presently existing or hereafter arisiraléctively, the "Secured
Obligations"), the Borrower granted a security iegt to the Bank in the Collateral (as such tergefed in the Loan and

Security Agreement), pursuant to the terms andigians of the Loan and Security Agreement; and




WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested the Bank amend cedaistand provisions of the Loan and Security
Agreement, and the Bank is willing to consent tohsmodifications upon the terms and conditionda#h herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein @ioeid, and each intending to be legally bound
hereby, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. Except as expressly defined herein, all tarsesl herein shall have the meanings ascribed o ithéhe Loan and
Security Agreement. This Amendment is intendedn@nd the Loan and Security Agreement, and the hodrSecurity

Agreement shall be so amended, from and as ofdteeta:reof.

2.  The Loan and Security Agreement shall be amesd that all references to "Agreement" contathecein shall

mean the Loan and Security Agreement, as amendethhand as further amended, supplemented or reddifom time to time

3.  The definition of "Revolving Credit Maturityd@e" found in Section 1.1 of the Loan and Secwkigyeement is
hereby amended and restated in its entirety asasl|

"Revolving Credit Maturity Date"— October 31, 2011.

4.  Pursuant to the terms of the Loan and SecAgtgement, as amended herein, the Borrower hasgdaato the
Bank, as security for the payment and performahe@ay and all of the Obligations and the perforneatall other obligations
and covenants of Borrower under the Loan and Sgcigreement, as amended herein, the Revolving Bsmry Note, and
each other Loan Document, certain or contingent;, existing or hereafter arising, which are nowpay at any time or times
hereafter be owing by Borrower to Bank, a firspgty, perfected security interest in the Collaterghe Borrower hereby ratifie

and confirms the




liens and security interests granted under the lamahSecurity Agreement; and further ratifies amaficms, without condition,
that (a) such liens and security interests shalligethe payment and performance of any and @tleoObligations and the
performance of all other obligations and covenah®orrower under the Loan and Security Agreemastamended herein, the
Revolving Promissory Note, and each other Loan Dwmt, certain or contingent, now existing or hetexadrising, which are
now, or may at any time or times hereafter be ovayp@orrower to Bank, and (b) the perfected status priority of such liens
and security interests shall not be affected invaay by the amendments to the Loan and Securitgéigent , as set forth
herein. The Borrower acknowledges that the outtst@nprincipal amounts of the Revolving Promissinte are due and owing

without any claim, defense or set-off.

5. All representations, warranties and covenahtse Borrower contained in the Loan and Secwkgyeement, are
hereby ratified and confirmed without conditionifamade anew upon the execution of this Amendmadtae hereby
incorporated by reference. All representationsravdies and covenants of the Borrower, whethegurater, or contained in the
Loan and Security Agreement, shall remain in foite and effect until all amounts due under thenLayad Security Agreement,

as amended herein, the Revolving Promissory Natégeach other Loan Document, are satisfied in full.

6. Except as modified by the terms hereof, athte provisions and conditions of the Loan and 8gcAgreement,
the Revolving Promissory Note and each other Loacunent, are in full force and effect, and are bgiiacorporated by
reference as if set forth herein. This Amendmedtthe Loan and Security Agreement shall be deaasedmplementing and
not restricting the Bank's rights hereunder ordhader. If there is any conflict or discrepancinegen the provisions of this
Amendment, and any provision of the Loan and Ssciigreement, the terms and provisions of this Admeant shall control

and prevail.




7.  As a condition precedent to the effectiverdghis Amendment, simultaneously with the exeautimd delivery of

this Amendment, the Borrower shall deliver to thenB the following:

(a) Certified copies of resolutions of the dipest of the Borrower authorizing the executionjwaely and
performance of this Amendment and any other doctimer@under, which resolutions shall be in form anldstance satisfactory

to the Bank in its sole discretion.

8.  The Borrower hereby represents, warrants artifies to the Bank that no Event of Default omiltured Event of

Default has occurred and is presently existing utite Loan Documents.

9.  This Amendment (a) shall be construed andreatbin accordance with the laws of the Commonuezit
Pennsylvania; (b) shall inure to the benefit of] & binding upon, the parties hereto and thepeesve successors and assigns;
(c) may be executed in two or more counterpartsh eAwhich shall be deemed an original, but alvbich together shall
constitute one and the same instrument; and (d)onBybe amended or modified pursuant to a wrisigmed by the parties

hereto.

10. THEBORROWER HEREBY WAIVES ANY AND ALL RIGHTS WHICH ITMAY HAVE TO A JURY TRIAL
IN CONNECTION WITH ANY LITIGATION COMMENCED BY OR AGAINST THE BANK WITH RESPECT TO THE
RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES HERETO.
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(@) The Borrower hereby agrees that it will pay, orseato be paid or reimburse the Bank for, all ofBhek's

costs and expenses in connection with this Amendnreriuding without limitation the fees of its lalgcounsel.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Amendment todmitsd and delivered by their

respective officers thereunto duly authorized,fat® 22 day of July, 2011.




BORROWER : RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: /s/ Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Office

RCM TECHNOLOGIES (USA), INC .

By: /s/ Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Office

PROGRAMMING ALTERNATIVES OF
MINNESOTA, INC.

By: /s/ Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Office

RCMT DELAWARE, INC.

By: /s/ Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Office

RCM TECHNOLOGIES CANADA CORP .

By: /s/ Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Office

BUSINESS SUPPORT GROUP OF
MICHIGAN, INC.

By: /s/ Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Office




SOLTRE TECHNOLOGY, INC.

By: /s/ Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Office

RCM TECHNOLOGIES SERVICES
COMPANY, INC.

By: /s/ Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Office

AGENT : CITIZENS BANK OF PENNSYLVANA
as Administrative Agent and Arranger

By: /s/ Derrick R. Davit

Derrick R. Davis
SVP

LENDERS : CITIZENS BANK OF PENNSYLVANIA, as
Lender

/s/ Derrick R. Davis

Derrick R. Davis
SVP



SECOND AMENDMENT
TO
SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED LOAN AND SECURITY AGREE MENT

Second Amendment (the "Amendment") to a certain Aadrd and Restated Loan and Security Agreement] datef
February 19, 2009, by and among RCM Technologies,dnd all of its subsidiaries (collectively, tiBorrower”), Citizens Ban!
of Pennsylvania, a Pennsylvania state charterekl raits capacity as administrative agent andrayea (the “Agent”), and
Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania, as lender (the “Bank

WHEREAS, the Bank and the Borrower made, executed and detive Second Amended and Restated Loan and
Security Agreement, dated as of February 19, 2808@mended by a certain Amendment to Second AmemdeRestated Loan
and Security Agreement dated as of July 22, 20dlle@tively, the “Original Loan and Security Agraent"), and in connection
therewith, the Borrower executed and deliveredxéhShmended and Restated Revolving Credit Note lpiayt the order of the
Bank, in the original principal amount of $15,00®0, dated February 19, 2009 (the "Revolving Fssany Note"); and

WHEREAS, as security for (a) the punctual performance ihdulthe Borrower of its obligations under the Loan
Documents (as such term is defined in the Oridgioain and Security Agreement), (b) the punctual paynin full of all amount
owing or to be owing under any Loan Document, lfe) punctual payment of any other amounts whicmgatiene may be due
and payable from the Borrower to the Bank, in ezade whether presently existing or hereafter ayigollectively, the "Secure
Obligations"), the Borrower granted a security iegt to the Bank in the Collateral (as such terdefined in the Original Loan

and Security Agreement), pursuant to the termspamisions of the Original Loan and Security Agrest) and




WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested the Bank amend ceemirstand provisions of the Original Loan and Séguri
Agreement, and the Bank is willing to consent tchsmodifications upon the terms and conditiondah herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein @ioeid, and each intending to be legally bound
hereby, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. Except as expressly defined herein, all tarsesl herein shall have the meanings ascribed o ithéhe Original
Loan and Security Agreement. This Amendment isnded to amend the Original Loan and Security Agesg, and the

Original Loan and Security Agreement shall be sermhed, from and as of the date hereof.
2.  The Original Loan and Security Agreement shalamended so that all references to "Agreememtamed
therein shall mean the Original Loan and Securigye®@ment, as amended herein, and as further ameswgalemented or

modified from time to time.

3.  The definition of "Revolving Credit Maturitydie" found in Section 1.1 of the Original Loan &eturity

Agreement is hereby amended and restated in itegnas follows:

"Revolving Credit Maturity Date"— November 30, 2011.
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4.  Pursuant to the terms of the Original Loan &adurity Agreement, as amended herein, the Borrba®provided
to the Bank, as security for the payment and perdmice of any and all of the Obligations and théoperance of all other
obligations and covenants of Borrower under thgi@al Loan and Security Agreement, as amendedréeres Revolving
Promissory Note, and each other Loan Documengiocesr contingent, now existing or hereafter agsiwhich are now, or may
at any time or times hereafter be owing by BorroteeBank, a first priority, perfected security irgst in the Collateral. The
Borrower hereby ratifies and confirms the liens aedurity interests granted under the Original Laad Security Agreement;
and further ratifies and confirms, without conditiohat (a) such liens and security interests steallire the payment and
performance of any and all of the Obligations dreperformance of all other obligations and covenhahBorrower under the
Original Loan and Security Agreement, as amendeeiinehe Revolving Promissory Note, and each otlean Document,
certain or contingent, now existing or hereaftésiag, which are now, or may at any time or timesdafter be owing by
Borrower to Bank, and (b) the perfected statuspaiatity of such liens and security interests shall be affected in any way by
the amendments to the Original Loan and Securityedment , as set forth herein. The Borrower aclkeges that the

outstanding principal amounts of the Revolving Pesory Note are due and owing without any clainfedse or set-off.

5.  All representations, warranties and covenahtse Borrower contained in the Original Loan &weturity
Agreement, are hereby ratified and confirmed witlamndition as if made anew upon the executiomisf Amendment and are
hereby incorporated by reference. All represemtati warranties and covenants of the Borrower, grdtereunder, or contain
in the Original Loan and Security Agreement, shathain in full force and effect until all amountsedunder the Original Loan

and Security Agreement, as amended herein, thelRegd’romissory Note, and each other Loan Docupametsatisfied in full.
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6. Except as modified by the terms hereof, athte provisions and conditions of the Original L@ard Security
Agreement, the Revolving Promissory Note and edicbrd.oan Document, are in full force and effeci] are hereby
incorporated by reference as if set forth herdihis Amendment and the Original Loan and Securgiye®ment shall be deemed
as complementing and not restricting the Banklstsitpereunder or thereunder. If there is any ardt discrepancy between
provisions of this Amendment, and any provisionhef Original Loan and Security Agreement, the teams provisions of this

Amendment shall control and prevail.

7.  As a condition precedent to the effectivertgdghis Amendment, simultaneously with the exeautod delivery of

this Amendment, the Borrower shall deliver to thanB the following:

(@) Certified copies of resolutions of the diogst of the Borrower authorizing the executionjgl and
performance of this Amendment and any other doctimereunder, which resolutions shall be in form anlstance satisfactory

to the Bank in its sole discretion.

8.  The Borrower hereby represents, warrants artdies to the Bank that no Event of Default omiatured Event of

Default has occurred and is presently existing utitee Loan Documents.

9. This Amendment (a) shall be construed andreatbin accordance with the laws of the Commonuueazit
Pennsylvania; (b) shall inure to the benefit of] & binding upon, the parties hereto and thepaetsve successors and assigns;
(c) may be executed in two or more counterpartsh edwhich shall be deemed an original, but alivbich together shall
constitute one and the same instrument; and (d)anBybe amended or modified pursuant to a writiigmed by the parties

hereto.




10. THE BORROWER HEREBY WAIVES ANY AND ALL RIGHTS WHICHT MAY HAVE TO A JURY TRIAL
IN CONNECTION WITH ANY LITIGATION COMMENCED BY OR AGAINST THE BANK WITH RESPECT TO THE
RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES HERETO.

(&) The Borrower hereby agrees that it will pay, orseato be paid or reimburse the Bank for, all ofBlaak's

costs and expenses in connection with this Amendnretuding without limitation the fees of its lalgcounsel.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Amendment todmited and delivered by their

respective officers thereunto duly authorized,fat® 24th day of October, 2011.




BORROWER : RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: /s/ Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Office

RCM TECHNOLOGIES (USA), INC .

By: /s/ Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Office

PROGRAMMING ALTERNATIVES OF
MINNESOTA, INC.

By: /s/ Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Office

RCMT DELAWARE, INC.

By: /s/ Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Office

RCM TECHNOLOGIES CANADA CORP .

By: /s/ Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Office

BUSINESS SUPPORT GROUP OF
MICHIGAN, INC.

By: /s/ Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Office




SOLTRE TECHNOLOGY, INC.

By: /s/ Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Office

RCM TECHNOLOGIES SERVICES
COMPANY, INC.

By: /s/ Kevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Office

AGENT : CITIZENS BANK OF PENNSYLVANA
as Administrative Agent and Arranger

By: /s/ Lisa S. Williams

Lisa S. Williams
SVP

LENDERS : CITIZENS BANK OF PENNSYLVANIA, as
Lender

/s/ Lisa S. Williams

Lisa S. Williams
SVP



EXHIBIT 21

Business Support Group of Michigan, Inc.
Cataract, Inc.

Programming Alternatives of Minnesota, Inc.

RCM Technologies Canada Corp.
RCM Technologies (USA), Inc.
RCMT Delaware, Inc.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements of RCM Technologies, &md Subsidiaries on Form S8 (No. 333-
165482, effective March 15, 2010, No. 333-1459@¢ctive September 6, 2007, No. 333-61306, effectiyril 21, 1993, No. 333-80590,
effective June 22, 1994, No. 333-48089, effectivardh 17, 1998, No. 333-52206, effective Decembel000 and No. 333-52480, effective
December 21, 2000) of our report dated Februar2@¥4 , on our audits of the consolidated finansiatements and financial statement
schedule as of December 28, 2013 and Decembe022,ahd for each of the fiscal years in the tworyeaiod ended December 28, 2013 ,

which report is included in this Annual Report aori 10-K.

EISNERAMPER LLP

Iselin, NJ
February 27, 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION REQUIRED BY
RULE 13a-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, Leon Kopyt, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16flRCM Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or éméttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsunder which such statements were made, nisadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in thégport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alnare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(&) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedortee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financggdorting, or caused such internal control oveatriitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any changééregistrant’s internal control over financial sgjing that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repogj and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anlgave disclosed, based on our most recent evaifuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

(@ All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrast’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2014 /siLeon Kopyt

Leon Kopyt
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer anteBior




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION REQUIRED BY
RULE 13a-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, Kevin D. Miller, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16flRCM Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omgttie a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in thégport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alnare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(&) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedortge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdorting, or caused such internal control oveatriitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any changaéregistrant’'s internal control over financial sgjing that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repogj and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anlgave disclosed, based on our most recent evaifuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

(@ All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrast’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2014 /siKevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre!




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10f4R&M Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) for thedal year ended December 28,
2013, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Lépyt, President & Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 ICSsection 1350, as adopted pursuant to secti6roBthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to

my knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 0#4123 amended (15 U.S.C. sec
78m (a)); and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/siLeon Kopyt
Leon Kopyt
Chairman, President, Chief Executive
Officer and Director
February 27, 201

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to RCM Technedodnc. and will be retained by RCM
Technologies, Inc. and furnished to the Securéies Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10f4R&M Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) for thedal year ended December 28,
2013, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, KeBinMiller, Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. secli®b0, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of tHeaSas-Oxley Act of 2002, to my
knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 0#4123 amended (15 U.S.C. sec
78m (a)); and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/siKevin D. Miller
Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer
and Secretary
February 27, 201

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to RCM Technedodnc. and will be retained by RCM
Technologies, Inc. and furnished to the Securéies Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



